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» NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
CORPORATE PROFILE
Nutritional Holdings is a manufacturer and distributor
of fortified staple food products as well as a range of
medicines registered with the South African Medicines
Control Council and other complementary natural
medicines. The Group’s manufacturing and marketing
operations are complemented by its research and
development capabilities. Nutritional Holding’s ability to
deliver an affordable range of nutritionally fortified dryfood products aims to address the malnutrition and immune
deficiency problems in the southern African region.
The Nutritional Holdings Group comprises three
established business units in the fortified dry foodstuffs,
nutraceutical and pharmaceutical space. The Group
manufactures a wide range of nutritional formulated
foodstuffs and supplements manufactured from soya,
sorghum and maize at its ISO 22000 accredited factory in
Klerksdorp as well as a range of basic family healthcare
medicines registered with the Medicines Control Council
and other, non-registered complementary medicines.

VISION
Nutritional Holdings’ vision is to develop and provide nutritious
and affordable dry-food products to the African market to
alleviate malnutrition and actively promote socio-economic wellbeing for South Africans and throughout sub-Saharan Africa.
MISSION STATEMENT
Nutritional Holdings’ mission is to be the preferred supplier
of dry foodstuffs to the southern African consumer as well as
a healthcare service supplier to the lower and middle-income
segments of the southern African market, culminating in
sustainable returns for shareholders.

» CONTENTS
In accordance with the provisions of the new Companies
Act, we will make the complete integrated report as well
as the notice to the annual general meeting available on
our website (as we currently do viz.www.nholdings.co.za)
and printed copies will be available on request. All
shareholders will be provided with the date and time of
the annual general meeting via sms/email. If the email
or cellphone number is not available we will post the
notice to the annual general meeting together with the
abbreviated annual financial statements.
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» DIRECTORATE		
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Thabo Vincent Mokgatlha CA(SA) (Chief Executive Officer) (40)
Appointed 1 January 2015
Mr Mokgatlha is a registered Chartered Accountant.Thabo served his three year articles at Coopers and Lybrand (now PWC) from 1995 to 1997.
He spent his last six months of articles as a senior lecturer (Accounting and taxation) at the UNW. At the beginning of 1998 he was appointed
on a full-time basis as a senior lecturer at the UNW and also joined Mokua and Associates CA(SA) consulting for the North West Provincial
Government and the Office of the Auditor General in the North West during his lecturing years.
In March 2002 Thabo joined the Royal Bafokeng Administration (RBA) as Finance Manager and was employed by the RBA group until December
2011. He has served in numerous positions in the RBA group including the positions of Finance Manager of Royal Bafokeng Resources, Head
of Treasury in office of Kgosi, Acting CEO of RBA and Royal Bafokeng Enterprise Development.
Thabo currently serves on the following JSE listed boards:
•
•
•

York Timbers Limited
Hyprop Investments Limited
Astrapak Limited

Thabo previously served on the boards of
•
•
•

Impala Platinum Limited
Rand Merchant Insurance Holdings Limited
South African Coal Mines Holdings Limited

Robert Stephen Etchells (Rob) (Group Financial Director and Chief Operating Officer) (47)
Appointed 30 November 2012
Mr Etchells has a BCompt (Hons) CTA degree. Rob served his articles with Deloitte Haskins & Sells between 1985 and 1988. Mr Etchells
completed a Post Graduate Diploma in Management Development at the University of Cape Town’s Graduate School of Business. With 20
years’ experience in both financial and general management, Rob has overseen the turnaround of various businesses and is a reputable
entrepreneur with a hands-on management approach. Mr Etchells previously served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group until the
appointment of Thabo Mokgatlha as CEO on 1 January 2015.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Glen Rowan Wambach (Independent non-executive director and chairman) (54)
Appointed 4 March 2011
Mr Wambach has completed a number of courses in the medical field. Glen has spent his entire working career in the medical and pharmaceutical
industry and is currently employed with a leading medical aid administrator.
Anthony Richard Pinfold (71)
Appointed 12 March 2013
Mr Pinfold has vast trading experience within the African continent as well as Asia. He was chairman of Great Wall Motors (SA) Proprietary
Limited since 2007, and retired recently from this position.
Treve Robert Hendry CA(SA) (Independent non-executive director) (48)
Appointed 22 June 2011
Mr Hendry is a registered Chartered Accountant. Treve is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Argent Industrial Limited a JSE-listed company
and has over 20 years’ experience as a senior executive.
Dr Constantinous Kapnias (Independent non-executive director) MBChB (UCT), BLS, ATLS (48)
Appointed 15 August 2014
Dr Kapnias is a medical doctor who has been in private practice since 1993. In 2006 Dr Kapnias shifted his attention to the wellness and
nutraceutical industry, having owned various companies in the preventative medicine market. He has been involved in sports performance and
sports injury rehabilitation and has worked with various international athletes and sports teams over the years. Dr Kapnias has been involved
in HIV research for a number of years, having collaborated with Prof Richard Bunn from the Medical Research Council of South Africa.
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GROUPACTIVITIES
OPERATIONS
» »GROUP
FOOD DIVISION

Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited
Nutritional Foods, which is located in Klerksdorp owns a
mass production, dryfood, manufacturing facility. The company
formulates, manufactures and sells a large range of fortified dryfood products and supplements.
The company’s brands are well established within the LSM 3-6
market place. In addition it has a wide range of catering products
serving the industrial catering industry throughout Southern Africa
and has recently introduced a range of high protein family breakfast
cereals for the LSM
LSN 8-10 market segment.

Family energy cereal

ORIGINAL

CHOCOLATE

STRAWBERRY

UNDER LICENCE FROM
GANEDEN BIOTECH USA

BANANA

PHARMACEUTICAL DIVISION
Impilo Drugs 1966 Proprietary Limited “Impilo”
Markets a range of basic family health care products via a
licencing agreement with Avid Brands Proprietary Limited. In terms
of the agreement, AVID manufacture, market and distribute the
products directly to pharmacies for their own risk and reward. Impilo
is paid a royalty fee of 10% of the net invoiced value of all sales
with guaranteed minimum turnover targets. The range of products
include registered medicines with the South African Medicines
Control Council as well as certain nutraceutical complimentary
The Water Crisis
medicines.
While the world's population tripled in the 20th century, the use of
renewable water resources has grown six-fold. Within the next fifty
years, the world population will increase by another 40 to 50%. This
population growth - coupled with industrialization and urbanization will result in an increasing demand for water and will have serious
consequences on the environment.
Already there is more waste water generated and dispersed today than
at any other time in the history of our planet: more than one out of six
people lack access to safe drinking water, namely 1.1 billion people,
and more than two out of six lack adequate sanitation, namely 2.6
billion people (Estimation for 2002, by theWHO/UNICEF JMP, 2004).
3900 children die every day from water borne diseases (WHO 2004).
One must know that these figures represent only people with very poor
conditions. In reality, these figures should be much higher.

info@onedrop.co.za / www.onedrop.co.za
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GROUP ACTIVITIES
OPERATIONS
»» GROUP
PHARMACEUTICAL DIVISION
Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited “Impilo”
“IHS”
Manufacturers and distributors of “Nutri-Pack” - Nutritional food
supplementation which promotes a healthy immune system .

!"#$%&'()*

NH2O Proprietary Limited
NH2O markets and distributes a range of “chlorine free” water
purification products under l i c e n s e from the manufacturers ACN
Chemicals UK Limited. These products include “point of use” water
purification drops called OneDrop as well as BacSan, an industrial
application for use by municipalities and other bulk water suppliers.
Both products carry certification from the CSIR.

ENVIRONMENT FRIENDLY

BACSAN
SANITIZER
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» FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Group turnover of R37.753 million was 4% up on the R36.284 million of the previous year.
The headline loss decreased from a loss of R6.029 million to a loss of R3.238 million, a 46% improvement with a total comprehensive profit of
R1.743 million for the year.
Gearing remains very low at less than 1%.

REVENUE (R’000)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT (LOSS) (R’000)
1 743
2015

37 753

(6 151)

(13 433)

0

36 284
2014
34 178

2015

2014

2013

NET ASSET VALUE (R’000)

HEADLINE (LOSS) EARNINGS (R’000)
(3 238)

(6 029)

(6 243)

2013

32 000

0

45 536
35 767
29 616

2015

2014

2013

PAGE 6 | 2015 ANNUAL INTEGRATED REPORT

2015

2014

2013

0

» FIVE-YEAR REVIEW

Profit information
Revenue 
Total comprehensive profit (loss) for the year 
(Loss)/earnings per share 
Headline (loss)/earnings per share 
Finanacial position information
Total assets employed 
Net asset value
Net asset value (excluding intangibles)
Profitability
Net asset value per share 
Net asset value per share (excluding intangibles) 
Return on shareholders’ equity 
Liquidity
Current ratio
Solvency
Total assets: Total liabilities

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

(R’000)
(R’000)
(cents)
(cents)

37 753
1 743
(0,15)
(0,15)

36 284
(6 151)
(0,32)
(0,32)

34 178
(13 433)
(0,89)
(0,41)

41 212
4 731
0,20
(0,35)

46 708
4 542
0,15
0,14

(R’000)
(R’000)
(R’000)

56 373
45 536
32 745

44 164
29 616
17 122

44 586
35 767
21 715

54 834
40 709
21 766

44 236
26 049
14 355

(cents)
(cents)
(%)

1,3
1,0
3,8

1,6
0,9
(21,06)

1,9
1,26
(37,55)

2,7
1,46
11,62

2,3
1,25
17,44

2,27

0,87

1,89

1,23

0,62

5,20

3,04

5,06

3,88

2,43

DEFINITIONS
Net assets
Total assets less total liabilities.
Earnings per share
Net profit (loss) for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (net of treasury shares).
Headline earnings per share
Headline earnings divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year (net of treasury shares).
Headline earnings
Net profit/loss for the year adjusted for profit/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment.
Current ratio
Current assets as a proportion of current liabilities.
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» CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW
The senior management that was tasked with the turn-around strategy for this financial year has achieved a great deal headed up by Rob Etchells.
This process was very challenging but they have done a superb job in improving production efficiencies and reducing costs substantially and have
targeted new channels for business which promise to start paying off in the financial years ahead. There are still numerous challenges including
the fact that the Group lost out on participating in large scale feed scheme contracts due to its BEE. Fortunately this has now been rectified with
successful conclusion of a BEE transaction with Philisani Proprietary Limted as well as the appointment of Mr Thabo Mokgatlha as the new CEO
as of 1 January 2015. Rob Etchells has agreed to take over the Group Financial Director position and also fulfills the function of Chief Operating
Officer. I would also like to welcome Dr Constantinous Kapnias as an independent non-executive director to the board.
Management continues to focus on ways to improve its routes to market in line with market needs and requirements. The overhead and
production costs are under constant review and well contained. Strong corporate governance and restoring the corporate image of the Group
is also high on the agenda. There has been major cost reduction as a result of continual internal rationalisation of staff and processes, thanks
to senior management’s commitment.
With the South African Government’s initiatives to promote job creation through manufacturing, Nutritional Holdings Limited will continue to
play its role which will benefit the shareholders.
I believe that Nutritional Holdings has turned the corner and I am confident that the results next year will indicate a positive outcome as a result
of the growth strategies and renewed focus currently being implemented.
SUSTAINABILITY
We understand the need to ensure long-term sustainability for the Group, which will be achieved through a return to profitability.
We continue to identify the risks associated with this stage of Nutritional Holdings’ business cycle and to ensure that management has
mitigated risk as best as practical under the circumstances.
Expansion of our activities will be done cautiously until we have established a platform of sustainable profitability and a strong financial base.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The recommendations and requirements of the King III report on Corporate Governance and the regulations of the JSE form an integral part of
the corporate governance framework within which Nutritional Holdings Limited operates.
APPRECIATION
I would like to thank all our business partners for their support during the year and I remain grateful for the support of the board, shareholders,
customers, suppliers, staff and other stakeholders of the Nutritional Holdings Group.
GR Wambach
Chairman
22 May 2015
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» CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
INTRODUCTION
During the year under review the Group made great strides towards achieving its medium-term turnaround strategy. However due to procedural
and regulatory constraints, the time taken to finalise its BEE transaction resulted in very little, if any, positive flow-through in the current
reporting period. The annual report provides the results for the year under review, with the Group’s financial and operational performance
achievements.
HIGHLIGHTS/ACHIEVEMENTS
•
Nutritional Foods attaining a Level 2 BEE rating
•
Sustained low gearing at 1%
•
Conclusion of BEE transaction with Philisani Proprietary Limited
•
Successful raising of capital to fund the expansion of product base as well as output
•
Successful launch of first FMCG product lines incorporating BC30, a one-of-a-kind patented strain of powerful probiotic
•
Successful testing of OneDrop and BacSan with the CSIR. Both products will be launched into the Southern African market during 2015
FOODS DIVISION
Expansion of Klerksdorp factory facility
In order to keep up to date with competitive and technological advancements the Group has invested in the latest extrusion capabilities.
Currently the dry foods factory does not have sufficient extrusion capacity to enable it to produce sufficient volumes of extruded maize and
textured vegetable protein (“TVP”) to make it competitive from a pricing point of view and to target high-volume food programmes with both
local government as well as neighbouring southern states.
Current factory facilities with regards to blending and packaging are sufficient, but due to the high cost of key source raw material inputs, that
are currently being bought-out, Nutritional Foods continues to be uncompetitive in the marketplace. The current factory buildings are sufficient
to house the new equipment needed, however, additional labour force will need to be employed.
The group has set aside an amount of R8.6 million to be invested into additional equipment.
In order to finance these acquisitions, funds were raised via a specific issue of shares to a BEE consortium as well as in terms of the general
authority granted to the board at the previous AGM held in August 2014. The Group has also applied to the Department of Trade and Industry
in terms of the DTI’s Manufacturing Investment Programme for a grant of R3.5 million.
PHARMACEUTICAL DIVISION
As part of the re-focus of management’s attention, an agreement was entered into with a medium-sized South African distributor of Medicines
Control Council registered medicines called Avid Brands (AVID) . In terms of the agreement AVID will take full responsibility for the manufacture,
marketing and distribution of certain of Impilo’s range of basic family healthcare medicines. This will relieve management from the day-to-day
operational requirements of running this division and free up cashflow for investment into the foods division. AVID will pay Impilo a monthly
royalty of 10% of the net sales achieved, with certain minimum turnover targets put in place to protect the Group’s investment in its registered
dossiers. It should be noted that Impilo retains full ownership of all intellectual property as well as ownership of the dossiers.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Group turnover of R37.753 million was 4% up on the R36.284 million of the previous year.
The headline loss for the year decreased from a loss of R6.029 million to a loss of R3.238 million with a total comprehensive profit of
R1.743 million for the year.
The Group’s gearing remains low at less than 1%. Management feels confident that the Group’s medium-term turnaround strategy will start to
bear fruit soon and we look forward to reporting back on such in due course.
TV Mokgatlha
Chief Executive Officer
22 May 2015
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» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Nutritional Holdings endorses the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct as contained in South Africa’s King III report. The Group believes
that its governance practices are sound and that the Group conforms to the principles embodied within Chapter 2 of the King III Report (King
III) on Corporate Governance and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (JSE).
Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries are intent on implementing the highest standards of corporate governance. The Group is committed
to good corporate citizenship and organisational integrity in the running of its affairs.
This commitment provides stakeholders with the comfort that the Group’s affairs will be managed in an ethical and disciplined manner.
Nutritional Holding’s philosophy is founded on principles of transparency, accountability and responsibility.
A summary of the extent of the company’s current compliance with Chapter 2 of the King Code is set out on page 11, adjacent.
JSE
The JSE Listings Requirements require that the Group reports on the extent of its compliance with King III. The Group has committed itself to
the adoption of King III and details of the company’s compliance to its recommendations are provided below.
Board of directors
The board of directors maintains full and effective control over the affairs of the Group. In terms of the governance philosophy of the Group,
a clear division of responsibilities at board level ensures a balance of power and authority, such that no one individual has unfettered powers
of decision-making.
The non-executive directors are high-calibre professionals and are sufficient in number for their independent views to carry significant weight
in the board’s deliberations and decisions. They are independent of management and are free to make their own decisions and independent
judgements. They enjoy no benefits from the Group for their services as directors, other than their fees and the potential gains and dividends
on their interests in ordinary shares. No share options are granted to non-executive directors.
The Group operates in terms of a formally approved Board Charter which sets out its role and responsibilities, the main elements being:
•

Nominations for appointment to the board are formal and transparent and submitted to the full board for consideration.

•

The Chairman of the board must be an independent, non-executive director.

•

A formal orientation programme for new directors must be followed.

•	Specific policies, in line with King III, must exist with regard to conflicts of interest and the maintenance of a register of directors’
interests.
•

They must conduct an annual self-evaluation.

•

Directors must have access to staff, records and the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

•

Succession planning for executive management must be in place and must be updated regularly.

•

Strategic plans and approvals framework must be in place and must be reviewed regularly.

•

Policies to ensure the integrity of internal controls and risk management must be in place.

•	Social transformation, ethics, safety, health, human capital and environmental management policies and practices must be monitored
and reported on regularly.
Appointments to the board are formal, transparent and a matter for the board as a whole. Curricula vitae are obtained, and circulated to all
board members. Interviews are conducted with the short-listed people. Appointments are then made by a board resolution.
Any appointments to the board are made taking into account the need for ensuring that the board provides a diverse range of skills, knowledge
and expertise, the requisite independence, the necessity of achieving a balance between skills and expertise and the professional and industry
knowledge necessary to meet the Group’s strategic objectives.
The board meets at least three times a year on a formal basis. Additional meetings are arranged where deemed necessary. A detailed
breakdown of each director’s attendance at the meetings concerned is indicated below:
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PRINCIPLE

STATEMENT ADDRESSING THE EXTENT OF THE
APPLICATION/REASON FOR NON-COMPLIANCE

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE BOARD
Principle 2.1: The board should act as the focal point for and
custodian of corporate governance

The board as a whole is fully committed to complying with
corporate governance principles

Principle 2.2: The board should appreciate that strategy, risk,
performance and sustainability are inseperable

The board agrees with this and regularly reviews these topics

Principle 2.3: The board should provide effective leadership based
on an ethical foundation

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.4: The board should ensure that the company is and is
seen to be a responsible corporate citizen

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.5: The board should ensure that the company’s ethics are The Social and Ethics Committee has been tasked to perform this
managed effectively
function and complies fully
Principle 2.6: The board should ensure that the company has an
effective and independent Audit Committee

Currently the company has three non-executives on the Audit
and Risk Committee of which two are independent and one is the
Chairman of the board

Principle 2.7: The board should be responsible for the governance
of risk

The Audit and Risk Committee presents the risk register to the
board for approval and review on a continuing basis and takes
appropriate action when necessary

Principle 2.8: The board should be responsible for information
technology (IT) governance

The Audit and Risk Committee have been tasked with this function
and reports to the board

Principle 2.9: The board should ensure that the company complies
with applicable laws and considers adherence to non-binding rules,
codes and standards.

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.10: The board should ensure that there is an effective
risk-based internal audit

No internal audit function exists but this is being considered by the
board. The executive directors are also directors of the subsidiaries
and are directly involved in the day to day operations of the
subsidiaries

Principle 2.11: The board should appreciate that stakeholders’
perceptions affect the company’s reputation

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.12: The board should ensure the integrity of the
company’s integrated report

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.13: The board should report on the effectiveness of the
company’s system of internal controls

The board fully complies with this principle

Principle 2.14: The board and its directors should act in the best
interests of the company

The board as a whole and the directors individually fully comply
with this principle.

Principle 2.15: The board should consider business rescue
proceedings or other turnaround mechanisms as soon as the
company is financially distressed as defined in the Act

The board is fully aware of this principle and will comply if
necessary.

Principle 2.16: The board should elect a chairman of the board who
is an independent non-executive director. The CEO of the company
should not also fulfill the role of chairman of the board

The role of CEO and Chairman are not fulfilled by the same person
and the Chairman of the Board is independent

Principle 2.17: The board should appoint the chief executive officer
and establish a framework for the delegation of authority

The board fully complies with this principle.
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» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Attendance of directors at board meetings during the year under review.
23 May
2014
GR Wambach (chairman)

5 December
2014

27 February
2015

x

x

TV Mokgatlha*(appointed 1 January 2015)

x

TR Hendry

x

JA Etchells** (resigned 15 August 2014)

x

AR Pinfold

x

x

x

x

x

RS Etchells

x

x

x

CD Angus (resigned 2 March 2015)

x

x

x

Dr C Kapnias *(appointed 15 August 2014)
* Director was appointed during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings.
** Director resigned in order to maintain an arm’s length relationship with the board as she is the Company Secretary.
To enable the board to properly discharge its responsibilities and duties, certain responsibilities of the board have been delegated to board
committees. All board committees are chaired by an independent non-executive director. Board committee charters are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that the committees’ duties and responsibilities are aligned with the requirements of corporate governance and keep
abreast of developments in this field.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a statutory committee according to the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008 and in terms of the
recommendations set out in King III, shareholders are required to elect the members of this committee at the company’s next annual general
meeting.
Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Mr TR Hendry, an independent non-executive director. The members, who are nonexecutive directors, meet at least twice a year with management and external auditors. Mr GR Wambach, who is also chairman of the board of
directors, remains a member as an independent non-executive director. Mr Wambach’s appointment does not comply with King III in that he is
chairman of the board and also a member of the audit and risk management committee. Mr AR Pinfold resigned as a member of the committee
on 15 August 2014 and Dr C Kapnias was appointed.
The Group believes that the members of the committee are knowledgeable about the affairs of the Group and have extensive expertise in
finance, accounting and risk management practices.
Audit and Risk Management Committee Responsibilities
The Audit and Risk Management Committee fulfills the responsibilities as set out in the Audit and Risk Management Committee Charter, which
includes:
•

overseeing the internal and external audit function;

•	assisting the board in the discharge of its duties relating to the safeguarding of the Group’s assets and operation of adequate systems
and internal controls;
•	the preparation of accurate financial reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable legal requirements, corporate
governance and accounting standards;
•

providing support to the board on the risk profile and risk management of the Group;

•

evaluating and confirming the independence of the external audit function; and

•

reviewing the expertise, resources and experience of the Group Financial Director.

Committee members have unlimited access to all information, documents and explanations required to discharge of their duties. This authority
has been extended to the external auditors. The board is provided with regular reports on the activities of the committee.
Additional information regarding the committee is contained in the Report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee on page 16.
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»
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee presently consists of two independent non-executive directors and one non-executive
director. The committee meets at least twice a year and operates according to a board-approved charter.
Members of the committee:
AR Pinfold – Non-executive director
GR Wambach – Independent non-executive director
TR Hendry – Independent non-executive director
Consideration is given during the meetings to succession planning, training and development, employment equity, broad-based black economic
empowerment, human resources policies, wellness programmes and remuneration of management and executive and non-executive directors.
The remuneration policy focuses on market-related payments to management and directors with the objective to retain the services of capable
individuals.
ATTENDANCE OF THE CURRENT MEMBERS AT HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Meetings attended
AR Pinfold*

1/2

GR Wambach

2/2

TR Hendry

1/2

JA Etchells**

1/2

* Director was appointed during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings.
** Director resigned during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings.
Executive remuneration policies
The executive remuneration policies are designed within the framework of the company’s reward strategy to attract, motivate, reward and
retain the caliber of executives needed to run the group successfully, while aligning their interests with those of the shareholders.
The policies conform to the best practice guidelines contained in the King III Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa.
Remuneration is made up of the following components:
•
•
•

Guaranteed pay
Share option incentives
Annual incentive bonuses

Non-executive directors’ fees
Governance of directors’ remuneration is undertaken by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The fees for non-executive
directors are recommended by the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee and approved in advance by shareholders at the annual
general meeting. Fees for 2014/2015 financial year were reviewed by the committee and the board and approved by shareholders at the annual
general meeting in August 2014. These fees apply until the next annual general meeting. Although the fees were approved, all of the nonexecutive directors, with the exception of the chairman, elected not to receive fees for the current year. An amount of R50 000 was paid during
the current financial year to the chairman.
Restrictions on share dealings
Directors and employees are prohibited from dealing in Nutritional Holding’s shares during price-sensitive periods. There is a formal clearance
procedure in place with respect to directors’ dealings in Nutritional Holding’s shares. Closed periods extend from 31 August and 28 February,
being the commencement of the interim and year-end reporting dates, respectively, up to the date of announcement of interim and year-end
results, and include any other period during which the company is trading under a cautionary announcement.
All directors are required to obtain written permission from the chairman before dealing in any Nutritional Holdings shares in order to protect
them against possible and unintentional contravention of the insider trading laws and stock exchange regulations.
Relationship with the shareholders and stakeholders
Management maintained communication with shareholders through SENS announcements and regular information on the official Nutritional
Holding’s Limited website www.nholdings.co.za.
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» CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company Secretary
Mrs Jennifer Ann Etchells (Jenny) the appointed Company Secretary is a Chartered Accountant (SA) as well as a Master Tax Practitioner (SA).
She holds a BCompt (Hons) degree as well as a HDipp tax degree. Jenny qualified as a Chartered Accountant (SA) in 1987 and has worked
in the audit, tax and accounting industry for 28 years, 20 years of which as a Partner of Deloitte, BDO Spencer Stewart and her own auditing
practice. She has 10 years’ audit experience with three JSE-listed companies. In addition, Jenny served as the Financial Director of two JSE
listed companies, Argent Industrial Limited and subsequently Nutritional Holdings Limited for three and a half years. During her time in the
audit, tax and accounting industry as well as in her position as Financial Director, she gained a vast amount of experience in the requirements
needed to fill the position as a Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary provides guidance to the directors on their duties and ensures awareness of all relevant statutory requirements
and legislation. All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who, at the Group’s expense, will arrange
independent professional advice for the directors where the directors request it.
In keeping with the JSE Listings Requirements, the board of directors has conducted an annual review of the Company Secretary and is
satisfied with the competence, qualifications and experience of the Company Secretary. The board is also satisfied that the Company Secretary
maintains an arm’s length relationship with members of the board as the Company Secretary is no longer a director of the company having
resigned on 15 August 2014.
The certificate required to be signed in terms of section 88 of the Companies Act appears on page 23.
Going concern
Attention is drawn to the fact that at 28 February 2015, the Group had accumulated losses of R110.943 million (2014: R107.765 million).
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes
that funds will be available to finance future operations and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the directors
continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the Group. Refer to note 36 for more details on what basis the directors have
determined the Group as a going concern.
The Group’s gearing ratio remains low at below 1%.
Code of Ethics
The Group’s ethics policy requires all employees to act with the utmost good faith and integrity and compliance to the applicable legislation. This
ensures that Nutritional Holdings remains committed to conducting business in a manner that is above reproach in all reasonable circumstances.
In addition, the Group strives to provide a work environment that is non-discriminatory with sound safety, health and environmental practices.
Interests of directors
The Company Secretary keeps a register of directors’ interest in contracts in terms of the Companies Act. The register is available for inspection
upon request by those who are entitled to access. The directors have declared their interest in contracts or arrangements entered into by
the company or its subsidiaries. Directors are required to inform the board timeously of conflicts of interest they may have in relation to the
business and are consequently excluded from voting on such terms.
Integrated sustainability reporting
On page 18 is the sustainability report which is a review of the nature and extent of the company’s social transformation, safety, health and
environmental management policies and practices.
Risk management
The Group’s main objective is to provide value to shareholders through a long-term sustainable real return on capital as a result of taking
business risk within an appropriate risk framework. The board of directors acknowledges its responsibility for establishing, monitoring and
communicating appropriate risk and control policies and ensuring sufficient capital is held to support the taking of risk. The board also regards
the management of risk as a key business process which ensures that the Group is protected against uncertain events which could prevent the
Group from achieving its objectives.
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»
The Group continually updates its vision, strategy, values and business objectives and the requirement for a robust risk management process
is critical in ensuring the sustainability of the business model. The directors of the Group unanimously support the long-term creation and
protection of wealth of its shareholders and fairness to all stakeholders.
The board reviews risk including financial, operational, strategic and environmental risks on an ongoing basis. This review process is carried
out to ensure that management continuously identifies potential risk and updates the risk profile of the group. From this profile, the Group is
able to ensure that the necessary control procedures are implemented to mitigate such risk and, in addition, management is able to respond
timeously to any exposure to risk.
Strategic and business risk
Strategic risk is the risk that the Group’s future business plans and strategies may be inadequate to prevent financial loss or protect the Group’s
competitive position and shareholders’ returns. Negative business risk arises from unexpected losses due to changes in business volumes,
margins and costs.
The directors recognise that the business, results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected in the future due to any of
the risks outlined below:
Political, social and economic conditions
The Group is incorporated and operates in South Africa and therefore the country’s political, social and economic conditions are relevant.
South Africa faces many challenges in overcoming substantial inequalities in levels of social and economic development among people. The
South African Government has taken a number of significant steps towards addressing the political tensions and social and economic problems
in South Africa, although certain problems still exist but will reduce with time. While South Africa features a highly developed financial and
legal infrastructure at the core of its economy, it presently has high levels of unemployment, poverty and crime. Particular consideration
includes how the South African Government will ultimately address such tensions and problems, to what extent its efforts will be successful,
the political, social and economic consequences of such efforts and the effect on South African businesses of the continuing integration of the
South African economy with the economies of the rest of the world. The economic direction of South Africa may be influenced by the extent to
which the South African Government, organised labour and business are able to agree upon common goals and the means of achieving them.
While the Group believes that the economic sentiment is positive for the future, these political, social and economic problems may have a
negative impact on the South African economy. The board of directors will engage with Government as required to mitigate the effect of these
conditions on the Group.
Broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) is an integral part of the South African Government’s economic transformation strategy.
The Group is committed to the concept of broad-based black economic empowerment and actively promotes the empowerment of staff
members and the community in which it operates. A B-BBEE total score of 89.85 was achieved in January 2015 by Nutritional Foods affording
the division with a Level Two contribution status.
Key personnel
The Group’s performance depends to a large extent on the efforts and abilities of its key personnel and employees. The Group believes that its
success will continue to depend, in part, on its ability to continue to attract, retain and motivate the necessary personnel, including executive
officers and certain other key management.
The responsibility of overseeing day-to-day operations and strategic management of the Group depends substantially on senior management
and key personnel. The inability to recruit personnel of the correct calibre could have a material adverse effect on the business of the Group.
The board is engaged in reviewing the Group’s remuneration policies to mitigate this risk.
The Group’s objectives
The ability of the board to implement the Group’s strategy could be adversely affected by changes in the economy and/or industry in which it
operates. Although the Group has a clearly defined strategy and the board is optimistic about its prospects, there can be no guarantee that
its objectives will be achieved on a timely basis or at all. The Group’s ability to attract new growth opportunities is also dependent on the
maintenance of its reputation.
Competition
The Group competes with numerous other local and international companies and individuals, including larger competitors with access to
greater financial, technical and other resources than the Group, which may give them a competitive advantage in the market.
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» REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a formally constituted sub-committee of the board of directors and in addition to having specific
statutory responsibilities to the shareholders in terms of the South African Companies Act, it assists the board through advising and making
submissions on financial reporting, oversight of the risk management process and internal financial controls, external audit functions and
statutory and regulatory compliance of the Group.
Terms of reference
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has adopted formal terms of reference that have been approved by the board and has executed its
duties during the past financial year in accordance with these terms of reference. These terms of reference are regularly reviewed and updated
where necessary.
Composition
The committee currently consists of two independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director. During the period under review
the committee members continued in office and as at 28 February 2015, as well as after year end, the Audit and Risk Managment Committee
comprised:
Name

Qualifications

Period served

TR Hendry (chairman)

BCompt (Hons) CA(SA)

22 June 2011 to date

GR Wambach

Marketing and Management Diploma, Business
Management (MDP), ILPA Health Benefit Management

4 March 2011 to date

Dr C Kapnias

MBChB (UCT), BLS, ATLS with extensive experience in
financial management in running various companies

15 August 2014 to date

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, Mrs JA Etchells (Company Secretary), representatives from the external auditors and
the designated advisor attend the committee meetings by invitation. The external auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and its Chairman.
Meetings
ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING THE PERIOD
23 May
2014

5 December
2014

27 February
2015

TR Hendry (chairman)

x

x

x

GR Wambach

x

AR Pinfold**

x

x
x

Dr C Kapnias*
* Director was appointed during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings.
** Director resigned during the year and was therefore not eligible to attend all meetings.
Statutory duties
In execution of its statutory duties during the past financial year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee:
•	nominated for appointment as external auditors, Grant Thornton and Mr D Nagar as the individual auditor, who in our opinion are
independent of the Group;
•	determined the fees to be paid to Grant Thornton as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements and the paragraph on external audit
overleaf;
•
determined Grant Thornton’s terms of engagement;
•	believes that the appointment of Grant Thornton complies with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, The JSE Listing Requirements
and King III;
•	received no complaints relating to the accounting practices of the company, the content or auditing of its financial statements, the
internal financial controls of the company, and any other related matters;
•
reviewed the draft audited financial statements and annual report, the preliminary profit announcement and interim statements; and
•
met with the external auditors to discuss the annual financial statements prior to their approval by the board.
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We concur that the adoption of the going concern premise in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
The objectives of the committee were met during the year under review.
Oversight of risk management
The committee has satisfied itself that the following areas have been appropriately addressed:
•
Financial reporting risks.
•
Internal financial controls.
•
Fraud risks as they relate to financial reporting.
•
IT risks as they relate to financial reporting.
•
Reviewed tax and technology risks, in particular, how they are managed.
Internal financial controls
The committee has:
•
•
•

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal financial controls including receiving assurance from management;
reviewed significant issues raised by the external auditors in their reports; and
reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and detecting fraud.

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, we believe that the significant internal financial controls are effective.
Regulatory compliance
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has complied with all applicable legal and regulatory responsibilities.
External audit
Based on processes followed and assurances received, nothing has come to our attention with regards to the external auditor’s independence.
Fees for audit services are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
Based on our satisfaction with the results of the activities outlined above, the committee has recommended the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton to the board and shareholders.
Financial function and Financial Director Review
We have reviewed the expertise, resources and experience of the company’s finance function and are satisfied that these requirements are
adequate for the forthcoming year.
The committee reviewed the appropriateness and expertise of the current Chief Financial Officer and confirms that his expertise and experience
is suitable.
Annual integrated report
We have reviewed the annual financial statements of Nutritional Holdings Limited and the Group for the year ended 28 February 2015 and
based on the information provided to the committee, consider that the Group complies in all material respects with the requirements of the
Companies Act and International Financial Reporting Standards and we recommend the annual integrated report to the board for approval.
The integrated report has been prepared in line with the best practice pursuant to the recommendations of the King III Code.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
TR Hendry
Chairman
22 May 2015
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» SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
We conduct our business to make a profit and return value to those who have invested in us through the delivery of an affordable range of
nutritional fortified food products as well as pharmaceutical, natural and complementary medicines, with the aim to address the malnutrition
and immune deficiency problems in South Africa. We aim to build value for our stakeholders and other stakeholders by addressing our social,
environmental and economic impacts.
Responsibility for sustainable development
The board accepts overall responsibility for the advancement of sustainable development with the assistance of the board sub-committees.
The day-to-day responsibility is delegated to executive management. We understand the responsibility to the people who enable us to conduct
business and the country in which we operate. We acknowledge that it is important to manage our economic, social and environmental
relationships effectively, which should ensure a better quality of life for all our stakeholders.
Our sustainability agenda
Our sustainability agenda comprises the following goals:
•	We will strive to be a recognised manufacturer and distributor of superior quality complementary, natural and pharmaceutical medicines
as well as protein and fortified powdered nutritional food products and supplements to be able to actively promote the socio-economic
well-being for South Africans.
•

We will strive to uphold high standards of corporate governance within our market place.

•	We will actively address the impacts of our business on the natural environment as we use natural resources which are all finite and
have to therefore be managed with care.
•

We will strive to ensure that we have the right people and culture to meet our goals.

Assurance
We are committed to ensuring that the non-financial information provided in this annual report is accurate. It is believed that the expectations
reflected in this statement are reasonable, but they may be affected by a wide range of variables that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those currently anticipated.
We have taken a number of important steps forward in our sustainability endeavours as we progress towards meeting and exceeding the
expectations of the stakeholders, which include the successful conclusion of a BEE transaction with Philisani Proprietary Limited and the
raising of capital to fund the expansion of the Group’s manufacturing capabilities.
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
2015
R’000

2014
R’000

37 753
29 581

36 284
29 154

8 172
7 094

7 130
106

Total value added

15 266

7 236

Value distributed as follows:
To remunerate employees:
Salaries, wages, pensions, bonuses and other benefits

12 059

12 042

786

488

86

50

592

807

1 743

(6 151)

15 266

7 236

79
5
1
4
(11)

166
7
1
1
(85)

Sale of goods and services
Cost of materials and services
Value added from trading operations
Non-operating income

To reward providers of capital:
Interest on loans
To the Government:
Company tax
To replace assets:
Depreciation and amortisation
To expand the Group:
Equity
To remunerate employees
To reward providers of capital
To the Government
To replace assets
To expand the group

(%)
(%)
(%)
(%)
(%)
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» RISK MANAGEMENT
The board is responsible for the total process of risk management for the Group and uses the risk assessment monitor as its main source of
information to determine the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management process. The objective of risk management is to identify, assess,
manage and monitor the risks to which the business is exposed. These include credit granting risks, crime, the shift in spending patterns,
and foreign currency and interest rate risks. Operational and financial risks are managed through detailed systems of operating and financial
controls which are reviewed and monitored regularly.
Losses from defaulting debtors are limited by stringent credit application criteria and clearly defined credit and collection policies. These are
reviewed regularly in the light of prevailing economic conditions and bad debt statistics.
With assistance from expert insurance consultants, risks are assessed and insurance cover purchased for all risks above predetermined selfinsured limits. Levels of cover are reassessed annually in the light of claims experienced and changes within and outside the Group.
Enviromental sustainability
The Group is conscious of the fact that in carrying out its activities there is a potential risk of environmental damage. Our underlying
environmental philosophy is the adoption of protective strategies to manage and control the impact of our manufacturing operations upon the
environment, at the same time as safeguarding our assets and human resources.
An effort has therefore been made to educate all employees in best practice so as to avoid causing long-term damage to the environment or
atmospheric pollution through the inappropriate use of plant and equipment.
The following are among our efforts made to reduce damage to the environment:
•
•
•
•

Time switches added to geysers.
Day light switches added to lights.
Boiler converted from diesel to paraffin.
Hot water circulation converted to save energy.

Social responsibility
We acknowledge our social responsibility towards the communities in which we operate and deserving institutions at large. The Social
and Ethics Committee was formed in terms of the new requirements of the Companies Act. The Social and Ethics Committee is made up of
GR Wambach, JA Etchells and Dr C Kapnias.
Equality
The Group is an equal opportunity employer and there is no discrimination on the basis of ethnic origin or gender or in any other manner.
A number of programmes are in place to ensure that the Group’s employee profile will become increasingly representative of the demographics
of the regions in which it operates whilst maintaining the Group’s high standards.
Employee participation
The Group will continue to have its operating decisions made at the appropriate levels. Participative management lies at the heart of this
strategy, which relies on the building of employee partnerships at every level to foster mutual trust and to encourage people to think at all
times about how they can “do things better”. The Group strives to liberate the initiative and energies of its people, because it is they who make
the difference in the Group’s performance.
A share incentive scheme exists to provide employees of the Group the opportunity to acquire shares in the capital of the group and to give
such employees the incentive to advance the interest of the Group for the ultimate benefit of the stakeholders.
Employees
The number of employees at the end of February 2015 is 92.
Health and safety
We comply with the Occupational Health and Safety Act and Department of Labour rules and regulations.
Employment equity
We comply with the Employment Equity Act, No 55 of 1998, and regular reports are submitted to the Department of Labour. Employment equity
committees have been established to set and monitor progress. We believe that no unfair discrimination exists in the workplace.
Ethics and values
Nutritional Holdings shares the commitment to:
•
•

employee development;
participation and empowerment;
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•

wealth creation, reward and recognition;

•

respect, dignity and equal opportunity;

•

a safe and healthy work environment;

•

community and enviromental commitment;

•

open communication;

•

continuous improvement;

•

product quality; and

•

customer service.

The Group endeavors to act with honesty, responsibility and professional integrity in its dealings with employees, shareholders, customers,
suppliers and society at large. Employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring that business practices are
conducted in a manner, which in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. In any instance where ethical standards are called into
question, the circumstances are investigated and resolved in an appropriate and fair manner.
Stakeholder engagement
As a listed entity, we comply with legal communication requirements. We believe in regular dialogue with stakeholders and the investor
community as a whole. Regular SENS announcements are published to keep the stakeholders informed.
Our website provides up-to-date information to stakeholders.
Communication to stakeholders takes place in the following manner:
Stakeholders and other providers of capital
Website
SENS announcements
Trading updates
Bi-annual results announcements
Annual report
Industry
Member of the South African Association of Food Science and Technology (SAAFOST)
Business partners and customers
Face-to-face meetings
Regular discussions
Staff and unions
Management meetings
Union meetings
Employment equity meetings
Suppliers
Regular discussions
Presentations to procurement committees
Product responsibility
The continuous need for food manufacturers to market products that meet the required food safety standards has resulted in a review of
various statutory requirements and industry legislation in order to implement better product quality and food safety.
Packaging and ingredient suppliers
Packaging and ingredient suppliers have a major impact on the risk management of food quality and safety and are managed accordingly.
We drive a policy to exclude dealings with suppliers that pose a threat to our product responsibility. Food Safety Certification is a compulsory
requirement for ingredient suppliers and continuous communication and controls have been established to prevent potential risks occurring.
We purchase our pharmaceutical, natural and complementary medicines that are registered (or in process of registration) with the SA Medicines
Control Council (MCC). These suppliers are subject to the very stringent rules as required by the MCC.
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» INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of Nutritional Holdings Limited
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Nutritional Holdings Limited set out on pages 28 to 63, which comprise
the statements of financial position as at 28 February 2015, and the statements of profit and loss and comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial
position of Nutritional Holdings Limited as at 28 February 2015, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated
and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the
Companies Act of South Africa.
Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 36 to the annual financial statements which indicate that the Group had an
accumulated loss of R110.943 million for the year ended 28 February 2015. Note 36 also indicates that these conditions, along with other
matters, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast a significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2015, we have read the Directors’
Report, Audit Committee’s Report and Company Secretary’s Declaration for the purpose of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies
between these reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective
preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited consolidated
and separate financial statements. However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports.

Grant Thornton
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors
Deepak Nagar
Partner
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
22 May 2015
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» DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
The directors are responsible for the preparation and integrity of the annual financial statements of the company and the Group, which have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act and the JSE Listing
requirements, under the supervision of RS Etchells, the Group Financial Director.
In preparing the financial statements, the company and the Group have used appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and
prudent judgement and estimates, and have complied with all applicable accounting standards. The directors are of the opinion that the
financial statements fairly present the financial position of the company and the Group at 28 February 2015 and the results of their operations
for the year then ended.
The directors have considered the Group’s past results, expected future performance and reasonable changes thereto, and access to its
funding, material and other resources, and are of the opinion that the company and the Group will continue as a going concern.
The directors are responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the
reliability of the financial statements, to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets and to prevent and detect material
misstatement and loss. Based on the information and explanations given by management and the comment by the independent auditors on
the results of their statutory audit, nothing has come to the attention of the directors which indicates that, in all material aspects, Nutritional
Holding’s system of internal controls and risk management are not effective and that the internal financial controls do not form a sound basis
for the preparation of reliable financial statements. The opinions of the directors are supported by the Audit and Risk Management Committee.
The company’s independent external auditors, Grant Thornton, have audited the financial statements and their unqualified report appears on
page 22.
The annual financial statements as set out on pages 28 to 63 were approved by the board of directors on 22 May 2015 and are signed on its
behalf by:
TV Mokgatlha		
Chief Executive Officer

GR Wambach
Chairman

Durban
22 May 2015

» DECLARATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary certifies that the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as
are required of a public company, in terms of the South African Companies Act, and that all such returns are true, correct, and up to date.
JA Etchells CA(SA)
Company Secretary
Durban
22 May 2015
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» DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors take pleasure in submitting their report for the year ended 28 February 2015 on the company and Group results for the year under
review.
Nature of business
The Group is engaged in the manufacture of fortified dry food products and supplements, as well as the distribution of registered pharmaceutical
products and complementary natural medicines in South Africa.
Review of activities
The total comprehensive income of the Group for the year was R1.743 million (2014: loss R6.151 million) after taxation of (R1.671) million
(2014: R0.050 million).
The operating results and state of affairs of the Group are fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our opinion require
any further comment.
Going concern
We draw attention to note 36 on going concern on page 60.
Subsequent events
The directors are not aware of any material matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year that is not disclosed in the
integrated report.
Statement of responsibility
The directors’ statement of responsibility is addressed on page 23 of this annual report.
Dividends
No dividend has been declared for the year.
Authorised and issued share capital
There were the following changes in the authorised share capital of the company in the year ended 28 February 2015:
At the general meeting held on 5 December 2014, shareholders approved by special resolution:
•	To increase the authorised share capital of the company from 3 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value to 5 000 000 000 ordinary
shares of no par value.
During the current year there were the following issues of ordinary shares:
•	1 000 000 000 ordinary shares as part of a specific issue in terms of a BEE transaction on 19 December 2014 at a price of 1 cent in terms
of a specific authority to issue shares for cash.
•	500 000 000 ordinary shares to public shareholders in February 2015 at a price of 1 cent in terms of the general authority to issue shares
for cash granted to the company by shareholders at the company’s Annual General Meeting.
Level of assurance
These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act, No 71 of 2008.
Preparer
The annual financial statements were internally compiled under the supervision of RS Etchells in his capacity as Group Financial Director.
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Interest in subsidiaries
Percentage
holding

Net profit (loss)
after tax

2015
%

2014
%

Issued
share
capital

Nutritional Holdings
Limited

100

100

2

Implio Health Solutions
Proprietary Limited
(previously known as
Impilo Marketing)

Nutritional Holdings
Limited

100

100

100

42

66

Nutritional Foods
Proprietary Limited

Nutritional Holdings
Limited

100

100

1 000

3 881

(4 400)

Impilo Drugs (1966)
Proprietary Limited

PB Tully Family Holdings
Proprietary Limited

100

100

350 100

177

65

Name of subsidiary

Held by

PB Tully Family Holdings
Proprietary Limited

2015
R’000

2014
R’000

Nature of business
subsidiary
Holding company
Distribution of
pharmaceutical and
complementary medicines
Manufacturer and distributor
of fortified dry foods
Distributor of
pharmaceutical, natural and
complementary medicines

NH20 Trading Proprietary Nutritional Holdings
Limited
Limited

100

100

Dormant

Nutri-vite Proprietary
Limited

100

100

Dormant

Nutritional Holdings
Limited

All the above subsidiaries are incorporated in South Africa.
Details of related-party loans are set out in notes 5 and 30 to the annual financial statements.
Risk management and insurance
Risk is managed in order to protect the assets and earnings of the Group against unacceptable financial loss and to safeguard against legal
liabilities. Risks are insured at minimum cost with satisfactory cover. Property, plant and equipment are insured at current replacement values.
Major shareholders
The major shareholders of the company are set out on page 64 of this annual report.
Directors
The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:
Name

Nationality

Appointment and resignation dates

GR Wambach*

South African

appointed 4 March 2011

TR Hendry*

South African

appointed 22 June 2011

JA Etchells**

South African

resigned 15 August 2014

A Pinfold*

South African

appointed 12 March 2013

C Kapnias*

South African

appointed 15 August 2014

TV Mokgathla

South African

appointed 1 January 2015

CD Angus

South African

resigned 2 March 2015

RS Etchells

South African

appointed 30 November 2012

AR J Spanjaard

South African

resigned 21 May 2014

* Non-executive.
** Director resigned in order to maintain an arm’s length relationship with the board as she is the Company Secretary.
The attendance at meetings by directors is set out in the corporate governance report on page 12.
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» DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Directors’ shareholdings
The directors of the company had the following direct and indirect interests in the issued share capital of Nutritional Holdings Limited as at
28 February 2015:

Executive directors
RS Etchells
CD Angus (resigned 2 March 2015)
ARJ Spanjaard (resigned 21 May 2014)
TV Mokgatlha
Non-executive directors
GR Wambach
TR Hendry
JA Etchells (resigned 15 August 2014)
AR Pinfold

2015
Direct

2015
Indirect

2015
Total

2014
Direct

2014
Indirect

2014
Total

38 000 000
237 500

260 221 579

298 221 579
237 500
–
510 000 000

38 000 000
237 500
3 000 000

47 428 088

85 428 088
237 500
3 000 000

1 328 334
4 808 064
–
453 083 594

1 328 334
2 700 000
49 793 491
111 845 015

510 000 000
1 328 334
3 800 000

1 008 064

111 845 015

341 238 579

208 064
341 238 579

1 328 334
2 908 064
49 793 941
453 083 594

There has been no movement post year end up to the reporting date in the directors’ shareholdings.
Special resolutions
At the annual general meeting held on 29 August 2014, shareholders passed two special resolutions:
Special resolution number 1
The company was authorised to remunerate its non-executive directors for their services at R150 000 per annum payable half-yearly, or on any
other basis as may be recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the board, provided that this authority will be valid until
the next annual general meeting of the Company.
Special resolution number 2
Granted the company a general authority for the acquisition by the company of shares issued by the company. This authority is valid until the
next annual general meeting provided that it shall not extend beyond fifteen months from the date of passing of the resolution.
At a general meeting held on 5 December 2014, shareholders passed two special resolutions:
Special resolution number 1
Granted authority for the share capital of the company to be increased from 3 000 000 000 to 5 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value.
Special resolution number 2
Granted authority, subject to the approval of special resolution number 1, to issue the BEE Specific Issue shares of 1 000 000 000 of no par
value.
Directors’ remuneration
The directors’ remuneration is reflected in note 21 to the annual financial statements.
Borrowings
On behalf of the Group, the directors have established credit facilities with various financial institutions for use by the various subsidiary
companies. The directors did not exceed any authorised levels of borrowings during the year under review.
Corporate governance
The directors acknowledge and subscribe to the values of good corporate governance as set out in the King III Report on Corporate Governance
for the Republic of South Africa and the board has confirmed that the Nutritional Holdings Group has applied the principles of the report. By
supporting this Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct the directors have recognised the need to conduct the business of the Group with
integrity and in accordance with generally accepted best corporate governance practices. Refer to the corporate governance report in the
annual report for specific disclosure requirements.
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Secretary
The secretary of the company is Mrs JA Etchells CA(SA) of:
Business address:			
Postal address:
Suite 3, 49 Richefond Circle			
P O Box 5026
Ridge Side Office Estate			
Frosterley Park
Umhlanga Rocks				
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
4319					4019
Auditors
Grant Thornton continues as auditors of the company and its subsidiaries. At the annual general meeting of 26 June 2015, shareholders will
be requested to re-appoint Grant Thornton as auditors of the company for the 2016 financial year and it will be noted that Mr D Nagar will be
the individual registered auditor that will undertake the audit.
Litigation
As reported in the previous year’s annual report, as well as annual reports before that, on 30 October 2009 summons was served on Nutritional
Holdings by Andrew Maxwell Tully, Harold Levin, Colin Craig Elsworth and Randal James Brereton, being the trustees of the Tully Family
Trust, which trust was the previous owner of the Impilo Group. In terms of the summons, the plaintiffs are claiming that shares issued to them
in the year 2007 at 60 cents per share, should have been issued at 48 cents per share. The plaintiffs issued further summons on Nutritional
Holdings on 4 December 2009, claiming that the 33 333 333 shares issued to the Tully Family Trust were issued in certificated form and thus
contrary to the Impilo acquisition agreement in that they were not issued in negotiable form. An appearance to defend both summon’s were
filed. No further action has been taken by the trustees of the Tully Family Trust since Nutritional Holdings entered an appearance to defend
both summons, some five years ago.
Besides above, Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries are not involved in any material legal or arbitration proceedings or legal actions, nor
are the directors aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened, that may have, or have had in the 12-month period preceding the
last practicable date, a material effect on the Group’s financial position.
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» STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

20 055
12 791

13 438
12 494

29
126
59 480

27
28
52 293

9 896

8 256

42 742

34 188

59 635

52 348

6 184
59
5 675
1 693

5 141
9
4 662
94

59
99

9
88
1

13 611

9 906

158

98

20

70

56 373

44 164

59 793

52 446

145 750
10 580
149
(110 943)

131 722
5 659

152 491

138 463

(107 765)

149
(93 854)

87
(91 618)

45 536

29 616

58 786

46 932

98
4 737

167
3 012

4 835

3 179

69
5 356
577

63
1 009
4 953
5 344

430
577

1009
605
3 900

6 002

11 369

1 007

5 514

Total liabilities

10 837

14 548

1 007

5 514

Total equity and liabilities

56 373

44 164

59 793

52 446

1,3

1,6

Figures in R thousands
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax
Current assets
Inventories
Loans receivable
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets held for sale

Notes

3
4
5
24

6
7
8
9

35

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated capital
Revaluation reserve
Share-based payment reserve
Accumulated loss
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Instalment sale creditors
Deferred tax
Current liabilities
Instalment sale creditors
Loans from related parties
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

Net asset value per share (cents)
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10
11
34

12
24

12
30
13
9

» STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Figures in R thousands
Revenue
Cost of sales

Notes
14

Gross profit
Other income
Operating expenses excluding impairments
Operating loss for the year

15

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

37 753
(23 101)

36 284
(22 143)

2 640

2 640

14 652
94
(18 809)

14 141
106
(19 822)

2 640

2 640

(4 514)

(4 469)

(4 063)

(5 575)

(1 874)

(1 829)

33

(5 274)

(1 841)
116
(511)

(7 103)
101
(240)

(Impairments) Impairments reversal
Group loans
Distribution rights
Loss for the year
Investment revenue
Finance costs

(38)
(4 063)

(5 613)

16
17

(786)

(488)
(6 101)
(50)

(2 236)

(7 242)

18

(4 849)
1 671

Loss for the year

(3 178)

(6 151)

(2 236)

(7 242)

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Gains on property valuation
Taxation

6 677
(1 756)

Total comprehensive income (loss)

1 743

(6 151)

(2 236)

(7 242)

(0,15)

(0,32)

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss per share
Normal and diluted loss per share (cents)

31 & 33
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» STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Figures in R thousands
GROUP
Balance at 1 March 2013
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Stated
capital

Treasury
shares

138 463

(6 741)

Total
Share-based
stated Revaluation
payment
capital
reserve
reserve
131 722

5 659

Total changes
Balance at 1 March 2014
Changes in equity
Issue of shares
Share-based payment reserve
Total comprehensive income(loss)
for the year
Total changes
Balance at 28 February 2015

138 463
14 028

131 722

Total changes
Balance at 28 February 2015

(101 614)

35 767

(6 151)

(6 151)

(6 151)

(6 151)

(107 765)

29 616

14 028

4 921
14 028

14 028
149
(3 178)

1 743

14 028

4 921

149

(3 178)

15 920

145 750

10 580

149

(110 943)

45 536

10

10

11

138 463

138 463

(84 376)

54 087

(7 242)

87
(7 242)

87

(7 242)

(7 155)

87

(91 618)

46 932

(2 236)

14 028
62
(2 236)

152 491

(6 741)

87

Total changes
Balance at 1 March 2014
Changes in equity
Issue of shares
Share-based payment reserve
Total comprehensive loss for the year

5 659

Total
equity

149

Notes
COMPANY
Balance at 1 March 2013
Changes in equity
Share-based payment reserve
Total comprehensive loss for the year

(6 741)

Accumulated
loss

138 463

138 463

14 028

14 028
62

14 028

14 028

62

(2 236)

11 854

152 491

152 491

149

(93 854)

58 786

10

10

34

Notes
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» STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Figures in R thousands
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Interest income
Finance costs

Notes

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

20

(5 035)

(5 789)

(786)

(488)

(1 951)
116
(511)

(6 623)
101
(240)

(5 821)

(6 277)

(2 346)

(6 762)

(548)
(297)
75
50
(50)

(314)
(766)

(16)
(98)

(9)
(28)

(50)
(7 187)

(421)

(7 351)

(458)

14 028
(1 009)

1 009

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale of non-current assets – plant and equipment
Advances on loans receivable
Advances on loans with Group companies

3
4

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds on share issue
(Repayment) Advances on loans
Advances on instalments sale creditors

(770)

(1 080)

14 028
(1 009)
(62)

1 009
(57)

Net cash from financing activities

12 957

952

13 019

1 009

Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year

6 366
(5 250)

(6 405)
1 155

3 322
(3 899)

(6 211)
2 312

1 116

(5 250)

(577)

(3 899)

Total cash at the end of the year

10

9
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» NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.
PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, the JSE Listings Requirements, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by
the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and are consistent with the accounting policies applied
in the previous corresponding period, except for the measurement of land and buildings and certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. The significant accounting policies and methods of computation are consistent in all material respects with those
applied in the previous financial year, except for the adoption of improved, revised or new standards and interpretations. The aggregate
effect of these changes in respect of the year ended 28 February 2015 is Rnil. The annual financial statements have been prepared under
the supervision of RS Etchells, the Group Financial Director. They are presented in South African Rands.
1.1 Consolidation
		
Basis of consolidation
		The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the company and all entities that are
controlled by the company.
		The parent controls a subsidiary if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary.
		The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date of acquisition to
the effective date of disposal.
		Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those of the Group.
		

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

1.2 Significant judgements
		In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of
judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be
material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
Loans and receivables
		The company assesses its loans and receivables from group companies for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the company makes judgements as to whether
there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. The group
companies are individually valued using the discounted cash flow method.
		
Property, plant and equipment
		Management has made certain estimations with regard to the determination of the valuation of land and buildings and the
estimated residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment, as discussed further in note 1.3. and note 3.
Taxation
		Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation.
		The Group recognises the net future benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the
deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets
requires the Group to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Two of the Group’s entities
where a deferred tax asset has been raised are dependent on future taxable profits. These entities have not suffered a tax loss in
either the current or preceding tax periods. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations
and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ
significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting
period could be impacted. Refer to note 24.
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1.3
		

Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

		
		

•
•

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

		Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
		The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included
in the cost of property, plant and equipment.
		Property, plant and equipment other than land and buildings is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
		Land and buildings are carried at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
		Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
		Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.
		Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss in the current period. The
decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation
surplus in equity.
		Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual
value.
		Item
		
Land
		
Buildings
		
Plant and machinery
		
Motor vehicles

Average useful life
indefinite
30 years
5 to 15 years
3 to 10 years

		The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
		The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
		The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the
item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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» NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
1.4 Intangible assets
		
An intangible asset is recognised when:
		

•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and

		

•

the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

		

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

		

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

		

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:

		

•

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

		

•

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;

		

•

there is an ability to use or sell it;

		

•

it will generate probable future economic benefits;

		

• 	there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset; and

		

•

		

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

		An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible
assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all
other intangible assets amortisation is provided for on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
		

Intangible assets for the Group have indefinite useful lives.

		

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at every period end.

		Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its
useful life.
		Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.
1.5 Investments in subsidiaries
		
Company annual financial statements
		In the company’s separate annual financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment.
		

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

		

•	the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
company; plus

		

•

any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary.

		An adjustment to the cost of a business combination contingent on future events is included in the cost of the combination if the
adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.
1.6 Financial instruments
		Classification
		Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place at initial
recognition.
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Initial recognition and measurement
		Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
		The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
		Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not determinable,
which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
		For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement
of the instrument.
		

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

		

Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

		Subsequent measurement
		Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.
		

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets
		At each reporting date the Group assesses all financial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or Group of financial assets has been impaired.
		For amounts due to the Group, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and
default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
		

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

		Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the
date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
		Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss
within operating expenses. The loss is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate determined at inception. When such
assets are written off, the write-off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against operating expenses.
		
Derecognition of financial instruments
		Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires, or when the
financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.
		

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

		
Offsetting of financial instruments
		The Group will disclose information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on the entity’s financial position. This includes the effect or potential effect of rights of set-off associated with the
entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities.
		

Loans to (from) Group companies
These include loans to and from the holding company and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.

		

Loans to Group companies are classified as loans and receivables measured at amortised cost.

		

Loans from Group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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» NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
1.6 Financial instruments continued
		
Trade and other receivables
		Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value including transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition.
		The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit
or loss.
		

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

		
Trade and other payables
		Trade payables are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.
		
Cash and cash equivalents
		Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and
subsequently recorded at amortised cost which approximates fair value.
		
Bank overdrafts and borrowings
		Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings relates to instalment sales creditors. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the
borrowings in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.
1.7 Tax
		
Current tax assets and liabilities
		Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of
current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
		Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from)
the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
		A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination which at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
		A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination which at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
		Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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		Tax expenses
		Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the
extent that the tax arises from:
		

•

a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income;

		

•

a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity; or

		

•

a business combination.

		Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.
		Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the
same or a different period, directly to equity
1.8 Leases
		A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
		
Operating leases – lessee
		Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease liability. This liability is not
discounted.
		

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.9
		

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

		Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
		The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.
		The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific
projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
		The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula in Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited and the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula in Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a
similar nature and use to the entities.
		When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
1.10 Impairment of assets
		The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
		If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs is determined.
		The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
		If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
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» NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
1.10 Impairment of assets continued
		An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
		An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the following order:
		

•

first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and

		

•

then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

		An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for
assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of
those assets are estimated.
		The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
		A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation
increase.
1.11 Share capital and equity
		
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
1.12 Employee benefits
		
Defined contribution plans
		It is the policy of one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited, to provide retirement benefits to its
employees. A defined contribution provident fund, subject to the Pensions Fund Act, exists for this purpose. Payments to the
defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.
		
		

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee obligations arise from accrued leave entitlement at the reporting date.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies
		
Provisions are recognised when:
		
•
the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
		

•	it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

		

•

		

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

		Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement
shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the
obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not
exceed the amount of the provision.
		

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

		If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a
provision.
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1.14 Revenue
		
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
		

•

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

		

•	the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

		

•

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

		

•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

		

•

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

		When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
		

•

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

		

•

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group;

		

•	the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and

		

•

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

		When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
		Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates and value added tax.
		

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

		Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed.
1.15 Cost of sales
		When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
1.16 Segment reporting
		The Group has three operating segments: the Nutritional Foods, Pharmaceuticals and Services segments. In identifying these
operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service lines representing its main products and services.
		Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decisionmaker and in compliance with IFRS. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
perfomance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic decisions.
		An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.
1.17 Non-current assets held for sale
		Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.
		Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. A non-current
asset is not depreciated while it is classified as held for sale.
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PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued
1.18 Borrowing costs
		Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time
as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:
		

•	Borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary investment
of those borrowings.

		

•	Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining
a qualified asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

		

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:

		

•

expenditures for the asset have incurred;

		

•

borrowing costs have been incurred; and

		

•

activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

		Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation ceases when
substantially all activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.19 Share incentive scheme
		A share incentive scheme exists to provide employees of the Group the opportunity to acquire shares in the capital of the Group
and to give such employees the incentive to advance the interest of the Group for the ultimate benefit of all stakeholders in the
Group. The share incentive scheme consists of a share purchase scheme.
		Ordinary shares in Nutritional Holdings Limited which have been acquired by a Group company in terms of an approved share
repurchase programme or are held by the Share Incentive Trust are classified as treasury shares. The cost of these shares is
deducted from equity and the number of shares is deducted from the weighted average number of shares. Dividends received on
treasury shares are eliminated on consolidation.
2.
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
	At the date of approval of these annual financial statements, certain new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group.
	These new pronouncements will be adopted in the entity’s accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the entity’s financial
statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity’s financial statements.
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
		In the current year, the Group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial
year and that are relevant to its operations:
		
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)
		These amendments clarify the application of certain offsetting criteria in IAS 32, including:
		

•

the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’; and

		

•

that some gross settlement mechanisms may be considered equivalent to net settlement.

		The amendments have been applied retrospectively in accordance with their transitional provisions. As the Group does not
currently present any financial assets and liabilities on a net basis using the provisions of IAS 32, these amendments had no
material effect on the financial statements for the period presented.
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Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets (Amendments to IAS 36)
		These amendments clarify that an entity is required to disclose the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
whenever an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed in the period. In addition, they introduce several new disclosures
required to be made when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal, including:
		

•	additional information about fair value measurement including the applicable level of the fair value hierarchy, and a
description of any valuations techniques used and key assumptions made; and

		

•

the discount rates used if fair values less costs of disposal is measured using a present value technique.

		The amendments have been applied retrospectively in accordance with their transitional provisions but have no material effect on
the financial statements for the period.
		Early adoption of ‘Defined Benefit Plan: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)
		
IAS 19 ‘Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions’
		The Group has early adopted ‘Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)’. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and:
		

•

clarify the requirements of IAS 19 relating to contributions from employees or third parties; and

		

•

introduce a practical expedient such that contributions that are independent of the number of years of service may be
treated as a reduction of service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered.

		The Group has applied the practical expedient as its accounting policy. This treatment is consistent with the Group’s previous
practice before the Amendments to IAS 19. Therefore, the initial application of the amendments has no effect on the Group’s
financial statements.
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
		The Group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 March 2014 or later periods:
		
IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ (2014)
		The IASB recently released IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2014), representing the completion of its project to replace IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. The new standard introduces extensive changes on IAS 39’s guidance on
the classification and measurement of financial assets and introduces a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for the impairment of
financial assets. IFRS 9 also provides guidance on the application of hedge accounting.
		The Group’s management has yet to assess the impact of IFRS 9 on these annual financial statements. The new standard is
required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
		IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
		IFRS 15 presents new requirements for the recognition of revenue, replacing IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’,
and several revenue-related interpretations. The new standard establishes a control-based revenue recognition model and
provides additional guidance in many areas not covered in detail under existing IFRSs, including how to account for arrangements
with multiple performance obligations, variable pricing, customer refund rights, supplier repurchase options, and other common
complexities.
		IFRS 15 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Group’s management have not yet assessed
the impact of IFRS 15 on these annual financial statements.
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3.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Figures in R thousands
GROUP
Buildings
Land
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
Total

Cost

2015
AccuRemulated
valuation depreciation

2 568
516
906
9 607

12 846
1 569

13 597

14 415

2014
AccuRemulated
valuation depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost
2 568
516
1 006
9 095

7 372
367

(533)
(7 424)

15 414
2 085
373
2 183

(7 957)

20 055

13 185

7739

Figures in R thousands

Cost

2015
Accumulated
depreciation

COMPANY
Plant and machinery

135

(106)

Carrying
value
29

Carrying
value

(591)
(6 895)

9 940
883
415
2 200

(7 486)

13 438

Cost

2014
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

119

(92)

27

Depreciation

Total

(15)

(63)
(529)

15 414
2 085
373
2 183

There is no depreciation provided for on buildings as the residual value is greater than the carrying value.
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening
Figures in R thousands
balance
GROUP 2015
Buildings
Land
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
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Revaluations

Disposals

9 940
883
415
2 200

21
527

13 438

548

6 676

(15)

(592)

20 055

Additions

Non-current
assets
held for sale

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

Opening
balance
GROUP 2014
Buildings
Land
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

Additions

5 474
1 202

9 964
883
603
2 602

(24)
(20)
(50)

(65)

314

(103)
(666)

9 940
883
415
2 200

14 052

314

(70)

(89)

(769)

13 438

3.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment
Opening
balance

Additions

Depreciation

Total

COMPANY 2015
Plant and machinery

27

16

(14)

29

COMPANY 2014
Plant and machinery

32

9

(14)

27

Figures in R thousands

Pledged as security
The land and buildings are pledged as security for a mortage bond of R4.6 million (2014: R4.6 million). The instalment sale obligation of
R167 322 (2014: R229 802) is secured by the motor vehicle (refer to note 12).
The book value of assets pledged as security:
Figures in R thousands
Land and buildings
Motor vehicles

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

17 499
139

10 823
199

2 861
14 415
223

2 861
7 739
223

17 499

10 823

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

Details of property
Land and buildings
Land and buildings comprise Portion 10 of Erf 1911 Extension 1,
North-West Province measuring 1,3866 hectares with commercial
buildings thereon.
Purchase price: 2007
Revaluations
Additions/disposals

Revaluations
The effective date of the current revaluation was 28 February 2015. The revaluation was performed by the board of directors.
Land and buildings are re-valued every three years.
The valuation was performed using the rental yield approach, and the following assumptions were used based on current properties in
the same area that are being sold currently:
2015
2014
Capitalisation rate:
Factory and office rental per square metre
Silo shed rental per square metre

(%)
(R)
(R)

12
20
15

11
15 to 35
16
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
GROUP
Figures in R thousands

2015
Accumulated
Cost
impairment Carrying value

2014
Accumulated
Cost
impairment Carrying value

GROUP
Brand names
Intellectual property

11 694
1 097

11 694
1 097

11 694
838

(38)

11 694
800

Total

12 791

12 791

12 532

(38)

12 494

COMPANY
Intellectual property

126

126

28

28

Total

126

126

28

28

Opening
balance

Additions

GROUP 2015
Brand names
Intellectual property

11 694
800

297

11 694
1 097

Total

12 494

297

12 791

GROUP 2014
Brand names
Intellectual property

11 694
72

766

(38)

11 694
800

Total

11 766

766

(38)

12 494

28

98

Reconciliation of intangible assets
Figures in R thousands

COMPANY 2015
Intellectual property
COMPANY 2014
Distribution rights
Intellectual property

7 200

Impairment

Total

126
(7 200)

28

28

The useful life of brand medical names and intellectual property is considered indefinite. Brand names and intellectual property relate to
dossiers registered with the Medicines Control Council in Impilo Drugs (1966) Proprietary Limited which do not have a finite life. These
dossiers typically remain in demand and have done so in most cases since the inception of the company.
The value of the brand names is not separately identifiable and we have applied our assumptions as one cash-generating unit.
In assessing the carrying values of the brand names, management has projected cash flows based on the existing 10-year licencing
agreement which has an inception date of 1 October 2014. This is not the end of the useful life of the asset as these are considered to
have an indefinite life, however no value has been placed on the asset after 10 years.
Key assumptions used by management are based on the following:
•	Revenue will escalate in the first year at the same rate that it has between the first month of the agreement and the end of
February 2015, in the second year at a rate of 2% per month, the third year at a rate of 1% per annum and thereafter at a rate of
0,67% per month.
•
Period in use 10 years.
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5.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Percentage
holding
2014

COMPANY
2015
Carrying
amount

COMPANY
2014
Carrying
amount

100
100
100

40 015
500
1

40 015
500
1

40 516
(28 542)
47 506

40 516
(28 542)
40 319

59 480

52 293

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
Opening balance

28 542

28 542

Closing balance

28 542

28 542

Loans
Subsidiaries
Impilo Drugs (1966) Proprietary Limited
Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited
Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited (previously Impilo Marketing Proprietary Limited)
PB Tully Family Holdings Proprietary Limited
Employee Share Incentive Trust Loan

11 864
40 348
5 346
12
6 741

11 898
32 101
6 406
12
6 741

Impairment of loans to subsidiaries

64 311
(16 805)

57 158
(16 839)

47 506

40 319

16 839

11 565
5 274

Figures in R thousands
Investments
PB Tully Family Holdings Proprietary Limited
Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited
Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited

Percentage
holding
Held by
2015
Nutritional Holdings Limited
Nutritional Holdings Limited
Nutritional Holdings Limited

100
100
100

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
Loans to Group companies

The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown net of impairment losses.

The above loans are unsecured and repayable at the option of the subsidiary. Interest of R115.780
was charged during the year (2014: R100.539).
Credit quality of loans to Group companies
The credit quality of loans to Group companies that are neither past due nor impaired is assessed
individually based on the solvency of the company being assessed. Management believes that all
loans to Group companies that are not impaired or past due are of good credit quality.
Loans to Group companies impaired
As of 28 February 2015, loans to Group companies of R16.805 million (2014: R16.839 million) were
impaired.
Reconciliation of provision for/(reversal of) impairment of loans to Group companies
Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Reversal of impairment
Closing balance

(34)
16 805

16 839
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GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

3 578
376
2 230

2 041
304
2 796

6 184

5 141

Reconciliation of impairment of inventories
Opening balance
Amounts reversed

(49)
12

(76)
27

Closing balance

(37)

(49)

59

Figures in R thousands
6.

INVENTORIES
Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

9

59

9

59

9

59

9

59

9

59

9

59

9

59

9

The reversal during the current financial year was as a result
of previously impaired inventory being sold at reduced prices.
7.

LOANS RECEIVABLE
Sundry loans receivable

Current assets
Current liabilities
Terms and conditions of loans
The above loans are unsecured, interest-free and repayable by mutual agreement.

Credit quality of loans receivable
The credit quality of loans to related parties that are neither past due nor impaired is assessed individually based on historical information.
Management believes that all loans to related parties that are not impaired or past due are of a good credit quality.
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Figures in R thousands
8.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables
Doubtful debt allowance
Staff loans
Prepayments and other receivables
Deposits
Value added tax

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

4 626
(164)
65
301
763
84

4 071
(306)
19
662
178
38

75
13
11

75
13

5 675

4 662

99

88

Trade and other receivables pledged as security
Trade and other receivables were pledged as security for overdraft facilities of R5 million (2014: R3 million) of the Group, refer note 9.
Credit quality of trade and other receivables
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates.
The assessment performed has resulted in trade and other receivables below being identified as being past due but not impaired.
No external credit ratings were obtained for trade and other receivables. Management believes that all trade and other receivables that
are not impaired or past due are of a good credit quality.
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than three months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 28 February 2015,
R1.315 million (2013: R1.564 million) were past due but not impaired.
GROUP
GROUP
2015
2014
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
One month past due
Two months past due
Three months past due

1 153
81
81

734
390
440

1 315

1 564

164

306

164

306

306
164
(306)

95
306
(95)

164

306

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 28 February 2015, trade and other receivables of R163 783 (2014: R306 189) were impaired and
provided for.
The ageing is as follows:
Over six months

The creation and release of the allowance for impaired receivables has been included in operating
expenses in the statement of profit and loss and comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash. The total amount receivable represents the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
and other current assets, before any credit enhancements or collateral that may be held. The Group
does not hold any current collaterals.
Reconciliation of allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance
Allowance for impairment raised
Unused amounts reversed
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GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

1 691
(577)
2

91
(5 344)
3

(577)

(3 900)
1

1 116

(5 250)

(577)

(3 899)

1 693
(577)

94
(5 344)

(577)

1
(3 900)

1 116

(5 250)

(577)

(3 899)

10

10

10

10

(shares)
(shares)

1 907 368
1 500 000

1 907 368

1 997 368
1 500 000

1 997 368

(‘000)

3 407 368

1 907 368

3 497 368

1 997 368

(R’000)
(R‘000)

152 491
(6 741)

138 463
(6 741)

152 491

138 463

145 750

131 722

152 491

138 463

Figures in R thousands
9.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
Bank overdraft
Cash on hand

Current assets
Current liabilities

A mortgage bond of R4.6 million (2014: R4.6 million) is registered
over the land and buildings as described in note 3. Land and buildings
and trade debtors are pledged as security for overdraft facilities of
R9.788 million (2014: R7.07 million) of the Group.
10.

STATED CAPITAL
Authorised
5 000 000 000 (2014: 3 000 000 000) Ordinary shares of no par value
100 000 000 Redeemable preference shares of R0,0001 each
Reconciliation of number of shares issued:
Reported as at 1 March
Issue of shares – ordinary shares
Reported as at 28 February
Issued
Stated share capital – 3 497 368 178
(2014: 1 997 368 178) ordinary shares
Treasury shares – 90 000 000 ordinary shares

Treasury shares
At 28 February 2015, 90 million ordinary shares were under the control of the directors for the purpose of the existing share incentive
scheme. The 90 million shares were allocated to the executive directors of Nutritional Holdings Limited during the current and prior
reporting period. Refer to note 34.
At the general meeting held on 5 December 2014, shareholders approved by special resolution to increase the authorised share capital
of the company from 3 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value to 5 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value.
During the current year there were the following issues of shares:
•
•

1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value on 19 December 2014 at a price of 1 cent.
500 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value in February 2015 at a price of 1 cent.
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GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

5 659
6 677
(1 756)

5 659

10 580

5 659

INSTALMENT SALE CREDITORS
Minimum payments due
– within one year
– in second to fifth year inclusive

76
112

63
167

Less: future finance charges

188
(21)

230
(42)

Present value of minimum lease payments

167

188

98
69

167
63

167

230

3 856
300
1 200

2 915
133
262
1 643

5 356

4 953

37 753

36 284

37 753

36 284

Figures in R thousands
11.

COMPANY
2014

114

93
39

316

473

430

605

2 640

2 640

2 640

2 640

REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation reserve resulted from the revaluation of land and
buildings as described in note 3.
Opening balance
Gains on property valuation
Taxation

12

COMPANY
2015

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

The instalment sale creditors are repayable in monthly instalments of
R7 001 (2014: R6 980) and bear interest at rates of prime plus 1,5%.
The Group’s obligations under instalment sale agreements are secured
over assets (refer note 3).
13.

14.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables
Value added tax
Other payables
Accrued expenses

REVENUE
Administration and management services
Sale of goods
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Figures in R thousands
15.

OPERATING LOSS
Operating loss for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Premises
Equipment

(Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment on distribution rights
Impairment (reversal impairment) on loans to Group companies
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Employee costs – including directors emoluments
16.

17.

18.

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

315
467

363
434

267

215

782

797

267

215

(60)

84
(38)

592
12 059

807
12 042

33
14
2 981

(5 274)
14
2 600

116

101

116

101

INVESTMENT REVENUE
Interest revenue
Trade and other receivables

FINANCE COSTS
Current borrowings
Other

TAXATION
Major components of the tax expense (income)
Deferred
Benefit of unrecognised tax loss/ tax credit/temporary difference used
to reduce deferred tax expense
Originating and reversing temporary differences
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax
rate:
Applicable tax rate
(%)
Assessed losses not provided for
(%)

765
21

488

511

240

786

488

511

240

(1 756)
85

50

(1 671)

50

(28,00)
62,46

(28,00)
27,30

(28,00)
28,00

(28,00)
28,00

34,46

(0,70)

0,00

0,00

The estimated tax loss available for set-off against future taxable income for the Group is R62 002 005 (2014: R57 162 396) and for the
company R15 139 228 (2014: R12 783 139).
A deferred tax asset for the company has not been recognised as there is no convincing evidence that the assessed losses will be used.
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Figures in R thousands
19.

20.

21.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION
Fees

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Share-based payments
(Profit) loss on disposal of assets
Interest received
Finance costs
Impairments
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

411

422

216

227

411

422

216

227

(4 849)

(6 101)

(2 236)

(7 242)

592
149
(60)

769

14
62

14
87

786

488
38

(116)
511

(101)
240

(1 043)
(1 013)
403

(1 756)
(285)
974

(11)
(175)

(24)
403

(5 035)

(5 789)

(1 951)

(6 623)

84

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Nutritional Holdings Limited pays all directors’ emoluments except for that of ARJ Spanjaard which is paid by Nutritional Foods
Proprietary Limited.
Directors
Figures in R thousands
fees Emoluments Allowances
Total
Executive – 2015
TV Mokgatlha
RS Etchells
CD Angus
ARJ Spanjaard
Executive – 2014
RS Etchells
CD Angus
ARJ Spanjaard
Non-executive – 2015
G Wambach
Non-executive – 2014
G Wambach

200
1 080
795
180

40
480
180
60

240
1 560
975
240

2 255

760

3 015

960
720
480

320
60
160

1 280
780
640

2 160

540

2 700

50

50

50

50

75

75

75

75

All of the non-executive directors, with the exception of the Chairman, elected not to receive fees for the current and prior years.
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22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, loans to related parties, staff loans, deposits and trade receivables
as disclosed on the statement of financial position are classified as financial assets. VAT receivable and prepayments are not financial
instruments and thus do not form part of this category.

23.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of instalment sale creditors, loans from related parties, trade payables, accrued expenses and bank overdraft
as disclosed on the statement of financial position are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. VAT payable, and all payroll
accruals are not financial instruments and thus do not form part of this category.

24.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
GROUP

Figures in R thousands
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current liabilities
Provisions
Unused tax losses

1 March
2014

Recognised
in other
comprehensive
income

Recognised
in profit
and loss

28 February
2015

(3 012)

(1 756)

31

(4 737)

(14)
1 654

91
9 805

1 671

5 159

105
8 151
5 244

(1 756)

The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income relate to revaluation of land and buildings.
All deferred tax assets (including tax losses and other tax credits) have been recognised in the statement of financial position.
Deferred tax asset
The Group is made up of three trading companies and the holding company. Two of the companies in the Group earned a taxable income
and it is probable that taxable profit will be available in future in order to utilise the assessed losses available. A deferred tax asset has
therefore been raised on these two companies assessed losses. These companies, Impilo Drugs (1966) Proprietary Limited and Impilo
Health Solutions Proprietary Limited (separate taxable entities) did not suffer a loss in the current period in the tax jurisdiction to which
the deferred tax assets relates. A deferred tax asset has also been recognised on the assessed loss of the other trading company to the
extent of the deferred tax liability arising from capital allowances on the property, plant and equipment.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised for tax losses available for set-off against future taxable income where it is not probable that
future taxable income will be available. The amount not recognised in deferred tax assets is R7 555 561 (2014: R7 464 155) and for the
company R4 238 984 (2014: R3 579 279).
Tax losses available for set-off against future taxable income is only recognised for subsidiaries that generated taxable income in the
current and preceding period.
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24.

Tax
losses

Deferred
tax asset
raised

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) continued
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/liabilities
2015
Profitable entities (past four years profits generated)

18 426

5 159

Entity where deferred tax asset recognised on tax losses to the extent of the deferred
tax liability raised on capital allowance
– property, plant and equipment and provisions

28 437

4 737

4 737

4 646
91

– tax losses
– provisions
15 139

Enitity where no deferred tax asset raised

62 002

9 896

2014
Profitable entities (past three years profits generated)

18 730

5 244

Entity where deferred tax asset recognised on tax losses to the extent of the deferred
tax liability raised on capital allowance
– property, plant and equipment

25 649

3 012

– tax losses
– provisions

4 737

3 012

2 907
105

Enitity where no deferred tax asset raised

25.

Deferred
tax
liability

12 783
57 162

8 256

3 012

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

462

383

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plan
It is the policy of the Group to provide retirement benefits to certain of
its employees. A number of defined contribution provident funds, all of
which are subject to the Pensions Fund Act, exist for this purpose. No
retirement benefits are provided to directors.
The Group is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.
The total Group contribution to such schemes
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26.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital risk management
Management’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (excluding derivative financial liabilities) disclosed in
note 12, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 9, and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes 10 and 11.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, management may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed capital
requirements from the previous year.
GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

(note 12)

167

230

(note 9)

167
577

Net debt
Total equity
Total capital

Figures in R thousands
Total borrowings
Instalment sale creditors
Add: Cash and cash equivalents

Gearing ratio

(%)

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

230
5 344

577

3 900

744
45 536

5 574
29 616

577
58 786

3 900
46 932

46 280

35 190

59 363

50 832

2

16

1

8

Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk
The Group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. Management manages liquidity risk through
an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and borrowing facilities are monitored.
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RISK MANAGEMENT continued
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement
of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
Less than
one year
GROUP
At 28 February 2015
Instalment sale creditors
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

69
5 356
577

At 28 February 2014
Loans from related parties
Instalment sale creditors
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

1 009
62
4 953
5 344

COMPANY
At 28 February 2015
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft
At 28 February 2014
Loans from related parties
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

Between
one and
two years

Between
two and
five years

77

21

70

98

Over
five years

430
577
1 009
605
3 900

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. During 2015 and 2014, the Group’s
borrowings at variable rates were denominated in Rand.
At 28 February 2015, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year in Rands would have been R71 454 (2014: R44 363) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.
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26.

RISK MANAGEMENT continued
Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on a Group basis.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If
customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, management assesses the credit
quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based
on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales
to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
Figures in R thousands

27.

Financial instrument
Loans to subsidiaries
Loans
Bank
Trade and other receivables
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Material impairment losses (recognised) reversed
Impairment of Group loans
Impairment distribution rights

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

59
1 693
5 675

9
94
4 662

COMPANY
2014

47 506
59

40 319
9
1
88

99

(5 274)
(38)
(38)

Value in use
Management projected cash flows based on existing levels of trading and budgeted levels.
Key assumptions used by management were based on past experience and include the following:
– revenue will grow in accordance with budgets;
– period use – 10 years
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 12,8% being the estimated cost of capital.

PAGE 56 | 2015 ANNUAL INTEGRATED REPORT

COMPANY
2015

(5 274)

»

Figures in R thousands
28.

COMMITMENTS
Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
Premises
– within one year
– in second to fifth year inclusive
Plant and machinery
– within one year
– within second to fifth year inclusive

GROUP
2015

GROUP
2014

COMPANY
2015

COMPANY
2014

315
18

431
733

292
18

202
236

203
331

237

13
47

867

1 401

370

438

Management is committed to purchasing two twin screw extruders for Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited for the amount of
R2.5 million (US$207 500) during the current financial year. The machines will be funded by a loan from the holding company as well as
utilising the DTI Manufacturing Investment Programme grants which the Group has applied for.
29.

CONTINGENCIES
Banking facilities for Nutritional Holdings Limited are secured by letters of surety from Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited for
R10 million and Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited for R1.7 million.
Banking facilities for Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited are secured by letters of surety from Nutritional Holdings Limited for
R10 million and Impilo Health Solutions Proprietary Limited for R1.525 million.
Banking facilities granted to Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited are secured by a first covering mortgage bond over land and buildings
in the amount of R4.6 million (2014: R4.6 million).

30.

RELATED PARTIES
Identity of related parties
The Group has related-party relationships with its subsidiaries (refer to Directors’ Report) and with directors and executive officers.
Intra-company transactions
Amounts due by and to subsidiaries (refer to note 5)
Interest income from subsidiary (refer to note 5)
Administration fee received from subsidiaries (listed below)
Transactions with key management personnel
The number of shares held by the directors in the issued share capital of the company at 28 February 2015 were as listed in the Directors’
Report.
Key management
RS Etchells
TV Mokgathla
CD Angus (resigned 2 March 2015)
ARJ Spanjaard (resigned 21 May 2014)
Companies controlled by non-executive director
Pop Up Trading 39 Proprietary Limited – controlled by AR Pinfold
Philisani Proprietary Limited – controlled by TV Mokgathla
Company Secretary
Siyabala Incorporated – owned by JA Etchells
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Group
2015

Figures in R thousands
30.

RELATED PARTIES continued
Related-party transactions
Administration fees received from related parties
Nutritional Foods Proprietary Limited
Loans from related parties
Pop Up Trading 39 Proprietary Limited

2 640

2 640
1 009

9

206

9

57

13

57

13

(shares)
(shares)
(R’000)

3 407 368
2 133 053
(3 178)

1 907 368
1 907 368
(6 151)

Loss per share(cents)

(0,15)

(0,32)

2 133 053

1 907 368

(3 178)

(6 151)

(60)

84
38

(3 238)

(6 029)

(cents)

(0,15)

(0,32)

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average shares in issue net of treasury shares
(shares)
Diluted weighted average shares in issue net of treasury shares (shares)
Loss for the year 
(R’000)

2 133 053
2 133 053
(3 178)

1 907 368
1 907 368
(6 151)

Diluted loss per share (cents)

(0,15)

(0,32)

LOSS PER SHARE
Number of ordinary shares in issue net of treasury shares
Weighted average shares in issue
Loss for the year

HEADLINE LOSS PER SHARE
Weighted average shares in issue net of treasury shares
(shares)
Reconciliation of headline loss:
Loss for the year 
(R’000)
Adjust for:
(Profit)/loss from disposal of property, plant and equipment (R’000)
Impairment of Intellectual Property Rights 
(R’000)
Headline loss
Headline loss per share 

33.

Company
2014

206

Secretarial fees paid to related parties
Siyabala Incorporated

32.

Company
2015

1 009

Interest paid to related parties
Pop Up Trading 39 Proprietary Limited

31.

Group
2014

The 90 000 000 share incentive scheme shares do not have a dilutive impact as they have been allocated but not issued.

PAGE 58 | 2015 ANNUAL INTEGRATED REPORT

»
34.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
A share incentive scheme exists to provide employees of the Group the opportunity to acquire shares in the capital of the group and to
give such employees the incentive to advance the interest of the Group for the ultimate benefit of all stakeholders in the Group. The share
incentive scheme consists of a share purchase scheme.
The maximum ordinary shares so held may not exceed 171 599 444 of the ordinary share capital of the company.
All shares allocated to the share option scheme are to be exercised during a five-year option period with 33% vesting 12 months after
the acceptance date, a further 33% vesting after 24 months after the acceptance date and the balance vesting 36 months after the
acceptance date. Should the option holder resign from the group prior to the option maturity date the shares will not be issued and the
options will be cancelled.
2015
Weighted
exercise
price

2014
Weighted
exercise
price

0,012
0,020

0,02

2015
Number
‘000

2014
Number
‘000

Summary of activity in share option plans:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year

90 000
50 000
(50 000)

90 000

Outstanding at end of the year

90 000

90 000

Exercise
date within
one year

Exercise
date within
two to
five years

26 667
16 667

13 333
33 333

40 000
50 000

43 333

46 666

90 000

Number (000)
Outstanding options
Options with exercise price of R0,02
Options with exercise price of R0,012

Exercise
date after
five years

Total

The fair value of the share options at grant date is determined based on the Black-Scholes model. The model inputs were as follows:

Number of options granted
Fair value at measurement date
Share price at grant date
Vesting period
Volatility
Risk-free rate (based on national government bonds)

(‘000)
(R)
(R)
(years)
(%)

Option
granted
17 October
2013

Option 2
27 February
2015

90 000
0,008
0,020
3
1,126
8,075

50 000
0,0026
0,010
3
0,724
7,170

In determining share price volatility, consideration has been given to historical volatility as well as the expected option lifetime.
Group
2015
Amounts included in staff costs in respect of share-based payments

149

Group
2014

Company
2015

Company
2014

62

87
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35.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
The Group has decided to sell its plant and machinery and motor vehicle in Impilo Drugs (1966) Proprietary Limited, one of its subsidiaries.
The Group consequently classified these assets as non-current assets held for sale and accounted for these assets in accordance with
IFRS 5 (Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations). The assets were carried at their carrying amount, which was
considered to be equal to their fair value less cost to sell. The motor vehicles were sold in May 2015 subsequent to the current year.
The non-current assets held for sale are set out below.
Figures in R thousands
Non-current assets held for sale
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

36.

Group
2015

Group
2014

20

50
20

20

70

Company
2015

Company
2014

GOING CONCERN
The Group incurred an operating loss for the year of R3.178 million (2014: R6.151 million) but after Other Comprehensive Income an
income of R1.743 million was generated (2014: loss R6.151 million). This is a vast improvement from the previous year.
The Group’s total assets exceed its total liabilities by R45.536 million (2014: R29.616 million) despite having an accumulated loss of
R110.943 million (2014: R107.765 million).
Depressed market conditions together with the shortage of cash flow at the beginning of the year hampered the complete turnaround
plan of the directors and the Group is not yet profitable. The directors have therefore taken the following steps in assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern:
•	The directors have formulated a business plan with the existing business potential based on projects that have already started.
These include the steady growth in the pharmaceutical business with the new contract in place where the company earns royalty
income from Avid Brands as well as expected growth in Nutritional Foods with the assistance of the BEE partners and new brands
such as Mealie Man and Nutri-vite.
• 	The directors have also assessed the group’s cash flow requirements for the next 12 months. During the year the Group raised
R14.028 million from specific issue of shares.
This together with the improvements made in trading conditions gives the directors the view that the group will have sufficient cash
resources to meet its obligations. The gearing ratio of the group is below 1% and with the funds raised via share capital, the interest
cost will be reduced substantially.
Given the directors evaluation that the group has sufficient cash resources to meet its obligations as they fall due, the financial statements
have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available
to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will
occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the Group to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the
directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the Group.

37.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The directors are not aware of any material matters or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year that is not disclosed in
the integrated report.
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38.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Comparative figures have been reclassified as certain manufacturing costs were included in Operating expenses in
the group results for 2014. These costs have been reclassified from operating expenses to cost of sales. In addition
settlement discounts were reclassified to cost of sales from sales.
The effects of the reclassification are as follows:
Profit or loss
Revenue
Cost of sales
Operating expenses excluding impairments

245
(1 042)
797

Three columns have not be presented to show the reclassification of comparative figures as the reclassification does not change the
profit or loss.
39.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a
fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
– Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
– Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
– Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at
28 February 2015 and 28 February 2014:
GROUP
28 February 2015
Financial assets
Land and buildings
Non-current assets held fo sale
Total
Finacial liabilities
Share-based payment reserve

Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

Level 3
R’000

Total
R’000

20

17 499
20

20

17 519

70

10 823
70

70

10 893

17 499
17 499
(149)
(149)

28 February 2014
Financial assets
Land and buildings
Non-current assets held fo sale
Total

10 823
10 823
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39.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Level 1
R’000

Level 2
R’000

COMPANY
28 February 2015
Financial liabilities
Share-based payment reserve

(149)

Total

(149)

28 February 2014
Financial liabilities
Share-based payment reserve

(87)

Total

(87)

Level 3
R’000

Total
R’000

The fair value of the Group’s main property assets is based on appraisals performed by the directors on a three year cycle. The significant
inputs and assumptions are developed in close consultation with management.
Refer to note 3 for details of the inputs and assumptions used in assessing the fair value of land and buildings. The directors determined
that the land and buildings needed to be revalued however no other adjustment was needed in the current year and that the effect of
changes in the fair value between the date of the last appraisal and the reporting date is immaterial.
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of it’s carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. As the carrying amount
of the non-current assets held for sale approximates their fair value less cost to sell, no adjustment was needed.
The fair value of the share options at grant date is determined based on the Black Scholes model. Refer to note 34 for model inputs used.
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SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
Operating segments
For management purposes the Group is organised into three major operating divisions, namely Nutritional Foods, Pharmaceuticals and
Services. These divisions are the basis on which the company reports its primary segment information. The Nutritional Foods division
involves the manufacture of high-protein and fortified powdered food and food supplements. The Pharmaceutical division involves the
supply of pharmaceutical, complimentary and natural medicines. The Services division involves the providing of administration and
management services
These operating segments are monitored by the Group’s chief decision-maker and strategic decisions are made on the basis of adjusted
segment operating results.
Nutritional Foods
Pharmaceuticals
Services
Consolidated
Figures in R thousands
2015
2014
2015
2014
2015
2014
2015
2014
Segment revenue
Total revenue
Intersegment revenue

33 904

30 327

3 849

5 957

Total external revenue

33 904

30 327

3 849

5 957

(2 407)
(390)

(1 311)
(349)

304
(22)

181
(26)
26
(50)

Segment results
(Loss) profit before interest and
taxation
Finance costs
Finance income
Taxation
Other comprehensive income –
gains on property valuations
net of tax

1 757

(86)

2 640
(2 640)

(1 960)
(374)

2 640
(2 640)

(4 483)
(240)
101

40 393
(2 640)

38 924
(2 640)

37 753

36 284

(4 063)
(786)

(5 613)
(615)
127
(50)

1 671

4 921

4 921

3 881

(1 660)

196

131

(2 334)

(4 622)

1 743

(6 151)

Segment assets
Consolidation eliminations
Intersegment assets

38 351

25 019

6 824

7 675

59 793

64 129

104 968

96 823

(458)

1

(353)

(380)

(47 784)

(52 280)

(48 595)

(52 659)

Total external assets

37 893

25 020

6 471

7 295

12 009

11 849

56 373

44 164

Segment liabilities
Consolidation eliminations
Intersegment liabilities

9 960

8 555

681

479

1 007

5 514

11 648

14 548

Total external liabilities

9 607

8 555

223

479

1 007

5 514

10 837

14 548

669

555

62

488

114

37

845

1 080

(15)
578

(62)
755

14

14

(15)
592

(263)
769
38

3

3

91

86

Segment (loss) profit

Capital and non-cash items
Additions to property, plant
and equipment/Intangibles
Disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation/amortisation
Impairment losses
Number of employees
at period end

(353)

(458)

(811)

(201)
38

87

81

1

2
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SHARES
2015
Public
Non-public
2014
Public
Non-public

Number of
shareholders

Percentage of
shareholders

Number of
shares

Percentage of
issued capital

1 381
8

99,42
0,58

1 902 689 108
1 594 679 071

54,4
45,6

1 389

100,0

3 497 368 179

100,0

1 252
14

98,9
1,1

1 311 589 108
685 779 071

65,7
34,3

1 266

100,0

1 997 368 179

100,0

1 000 000 000
339 238 579
250 000 000

28,59
9,7
7,15

339 238 579
143 625 000
111 845 015

17,0
7,2
5,6

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE
2015
Philisani Proprietary Limited
Pop Up Trading 39 Proprietary Limited
Zustonelli Limited
2014
Pop Up Trading 39 Proprietary Limited
HJ Wessels Trust
AR Pinfold
RANGE OF SHAREHOLDERS
2015
1 – 9 999
10 000 – 99 999
100 000 – 999 999
1 000 000 shares and over
2014
1 – 9 999
10 000 – 99 999
100 000 – 999 999
1 000 000 shares and over
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175
447
525
242

12,6
32,18
37,8
17,42

633 270
16 713 155
163 465 441
3 316 556 313

0,02
0,48
4,67
94,83

1 389

100,0

3 497 368 179

100,0

142
393
494
237

11,2
31,0
39,0
18,7

543 409
14 823 537
154 567 541
1 827 433 692

–
0,8
7,7
91,5

1 266

100,0

1 997 368 179

100,0

» NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of shareholders of Nutritional Holdings Limited (“Nutritional Holdings” or“the Company”)
will be held at the Boardroom of Great Wall Motors SA (Pty) Ltd, 5 Sneezewood Lane, Glen Anil, Durban on Friday, 3 July 2015 at 10:00
(“the Annual General Meeting” or “the AGM”)
The record date for shareholders to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting will be Friday, 26 June 2015. Accordingly, the last day
to trade in order to be eligible to participate and vote at the Annual General Meeting will be Friday, 19 June 2015.
Purpose
The purpose of the Annual General Meeting is to transact the business set out in the agenda below.
Agenda
A. 	Presentation of the audited annual financial statements of the Company as required by clause 33 of the Company’s memorandum of
incorporation (“Memorandum of Incorporation”), including the reports of the directors, the report of the external auditors and the Audit
and Risk Committee report for the year ended 28 February 2015 as set out in the Company’s Annual Integrated Report 2015, of which
this notice forms part. The Annual Integrated Report 2015, containing the complete audited annual financial statements, is available at
www.nholdings.co.za or can be obtained from the Company’s registered office on request. A summarised version of the audited annual
financial statements as permitted in terms of section 29(3) of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008 (“Companies Act”), is included as
annexure A of this notice of AGM.
B. 	In terms of clause 26.3 of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, directors of the Company so elected shall rotate in accordance
with the provisions of clause 26.3.2. To consider and, if deemed fit; approve, with or without modification, the following ordinary and
special resolutions:
Ordinary resolution number 1 – Annual financial statements
	“Resolved that shareholders consider and endorse the audited financial statements of the Company, including the reports of the directors,
the Audit and Risk Committee and the external auditors, for the year ended 28 February 2015.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 1
	Clause 33 of the Memorandum of Incorporation requires that the annual financial statements of the Company, including the reports of
the directors, the external auditors and the Audit and Risk Committee for the year ended 28 February 2015 as set out in the Company’s
Annual Integrated Report 2015, be considered and endorsed by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
Ordinary resolution number 2 – Re-appointment of auditors
	“Resolved that Grant Thornton be and is hereby re-appointed as auditors of the Company for the ensuing financial year until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company, with Mr D Nagar being the designated auditor. The Audit and Risk Committee has
recommended and the board has endorsed the above re-appointment.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 2
	The reason for ordinary resolution number 2 is that the Company, being a public listed company, must have its financial results audited
and such auditor must be appointed or re-appointed, as the case may be, each year at the annual general meeting of the Company as
required by section 90 of the Companies Act and clause 33 of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation.
Ordinary resolution number 3 – Auditor’s remuneration
	“Resolved that the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 28 February 2015, be confirmed on the recommendation of the Company’s
Audit and Risk Committee.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 3
	The reason for ordinary resolution number 3 is that section 94(7) of the Companies Act requires that the Company’s Audit and Risk
Committee determine the remuneration payable to the auditor. The board recommends that the auditor’s remuneration be considered
and approved at the AGM.
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Ordinary resolution number 4 – Re-appointment Mr GR Wambach as a non-executive director
	“Resolved that Mr GR Wambach, retiring as a non-executive director of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Memorandum
of Incorporation, but being eligible and offering himself for re-election in this capacity, be and is hereby re-appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr GR Wambach may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 4
	The reason for ordinary resolution number 4 is that in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, one-third of the nonexecutive
directors are required to retire at each annual general meeting of the Company. These directors may offer themselves for re-election. The
board recommends to shareholders the re-election of the director mentioned above who retires by rotation in terms of clause 26.3 of the
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and who is eligible for re-election and who has offered himself for re-election.
Ordinary resolution number 5 – Confirmation of appointment Mr TV Mokgatlha as an executive director
	“Resolved that Mr TV Mokgatlha’s appointment as an executive director of the company effecitve from 1 January 2015 is hereby
confirmed.
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr TV Mokgatlha may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Ordinary resolution number 6 – Confirmation of appointment Dr C Kapnias as a non-executive director
“Resolved that Dr C Kapnias’s appointment as a non-executive director with effect from 15 August 2014 is hereby confirmed.”,
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Dr C Kapnias may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution 5 and 6
	The reason for ordinary resolution 5 and 6 is that in terms of the Companies Act it is required that the appointment of new directors be
confirmed at the next annual general meeting following their appointment.
Ordinary resolution number 7 – Confirmation of appointment of Dr C Kapnias as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee
	“Resolved that Dr C Kapnias’s appointment be confirmed as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company, with effect from
the conclusion of this AGM until the following annual general meeting of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Dr C Kapnias may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Ordinary resolution number 8 – Re-appointment of Mr GR Wambach as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee
	“Resolved that Mr GR Wambach be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company with effect
from the conclusion of this AGM until the following annual general meeting of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr GR Wambach may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Ordinary resolution number 9 – Re-appointment of Mr TR Hendry as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee
	“Resolved that Mr TR Hendry be and is hereby re-appointed as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company, with effect
from the conclusion of this AGM until the following annual general meeting of the Company.”
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Mr TR Hendry may be viewed on page 2 of the Annual Integrated Report 2015.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
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Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 7, 8 and 9
	The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 7, 8 and 9 is that the Company, being a public listed company, must appoint an audit
committee and the Companies Act requires that the members of such audit committee be appointed or re-appointed, as the case may
be, at each annual general meeting of the Company.
	Ordinary resolution number 10 – Placing unissued ordinary shares for purpose of share option scheme under the control
of the directors
	“Resolved that 171 559 444 unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company reserved for the purpose of the Company’s share
option scheme, be and is hereby placed under the control of the directors who, until the next Annual General Meeting, shall be authorised
to issue these shares at such times and on such terms as they may determine subject, to the extent applicable, to the Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE”).”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 10
	The reason for ordinary resolution number 10 is that the Company wishes to incentivise its executives and senior staff through the
Company’s share option scheme.
	
Ordinary resolution number 11 – Placing of the authorised but unissued ordinary share capital under the control of the
directors
	“Resolved that, the entire authorised but unissued ordinary share capital of no par value of the Company be and is hereby placed
under the control of the directors of the Company, which directors are, subject to the JSE Listings Requirements and the provisions of
the Companies Act, authorised to allot and issue any such shares at such time or times, to any such person or persons, company or
companies and upon such terms and conditions as they may determine, such authority to remain in force until the next annual general
meeting of the Company.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Reason for ordinary resolution number 11
	In terms of the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the shareholders of the Company have to approve the placement of the
unissued ordinary shares under the control of the directors. Unless renewed, the existing authority granted by the shareholders at the
previous AGM on 29 August 2014 expires at the forthcoming AGM. The authority will be subject to the Companies Act and the JSE
Listings Requirements.
	The directors have decided to seek annual renewal of this authority, in accordance with best practice. The directors have no current plans
to make use of this authority, but are seeking its renewal to ensure that the Company has maximum flexibility in managing the Group’s
capital resources.
Ordinary resolution number 12 – General authority to issue shares for cash
	“Resolved that in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the general authority given to the directors of the Company to issue any
unissued ordinary shares for cash, as and when suitable opportunities arise be renewed subject to the following conditions:
• 	This general authority is valid until the Company’s next annual general meeting provided that it shall not extend beyond fifteen
months from the date of the passing of this ordinary resolution.
• 	The securities issued for cash must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not the case, must be limited to such shares or
rights that are convertible into a class already in issue.
• 	After the Company has issued shares for cash which represent, on a cumulative basis within a financial year 5% or more of the
number of shares of that class in issue prior to such issue, the Company shall publish an announcement containing full details of
the issue, (including the number of shares issued, the average discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares over
30 business days prior to the date that the issue is agreed in writing between the issuer and the party subscribing for the shares,
and the effect of the issue on net asset value, net tangible asset value, earnings and headline earnings per share), or any other
announcement that may be required in such regard in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements which may be applicable from time to
time.
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• 	The number of shares issued for cash in aggregate in any one financial year shall not exceed 50% of the Company’s issued share
capital of ordinary shares as at the date of this notice of Annual General Meeting. As at the date of this notice of Annual General
Meeting, 50% of the Company’s issued share capital of ordinary shares amounts to 3 497 368 179 ordinary shares.
• 	The maximum discount at which ordinary shares may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of those shares over the
30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the company and the party subscribing for the shares
or any other price agreed by the JSE Limited.
• 	The allotment and issue of shares must be made to public shareholders as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements, and not to
related parties.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for ordinary resolution number 12
	For listed entities wishing to issue shares for cash, it is necessary for the board not only to obtain the prior authority of the shareholders
as may be required in terms of their Memorandum of Incorporation contemplated in ordinary resolution number 11 above, but it is also
necessary to obtain the prior authority of shareholders in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements. The reason for this resolution
is accordingly to obtain a general authority from shareholders to issue shares for cash in compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements.
The authority granted in terms of this ordinary resolution number 12 must accordingly be read together with authority granted in terms of
ordinary resolution number 11 above and any exercise thereof will be subject to the conditions contained in ordinary resolution number 11.
Ordinary resolution number 13 – Authorisation to sign any documents
	“Resolved that any director and/or company secretary of the Company be and hereby is authorised to sign any documents and to take any
steps as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to ordinary resolution numbers 1 to 12, and special resolution numbers 1 to 2.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% + 1 vote
Special resolution number 1 – Remuneration of non-executive directors
	“Resolved in terms of section 66(9) of the Companies Act, that the Company be and is hereby authorised to remunerate its nonexecutive
directors for their services as directors on the basis set out below and on any other basis as may be recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the board, provided that this authority will be valid until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company:
Independent non-executives
Proposed annual remuneration
Board members: R150 000 per annum payable half yearly.
	Remuneration is based on four board meetings, four Audit and Risk Committee meetings and two Remuneration Committee meetings
per year.
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 1
	The reason for special resolution number 1 is for the Company to obtain the approval of shareholders by special resolution for the
payment of remuneration to its non-executive directors in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act.
	The effect of special resolution number 1 is that the Company will be able to pay its non-executive directors for the services they render
to the Company as directors without requiring further shareholder approval until the next Annual General Meeting.
Special resolution number 2 – Acquisition of the company’s own shares
	“Resolved in terms of section 46 and 48 of the Companies Act and the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company (or one of its
wholly owned subsidiaries) that the directors of the Company be authorised, by way of a general approval, until this authority lapses at
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen months), from the date of passing
of this special resolution (whichever period is the shorter), to acquire the Company’s own shares, upon such terms and conditions and in
such amounts as the directors may from time to time decide, but subject to the provisions of the JSE Listings Requirements and further
subject to the following terms and conditions:
• 	Any repurchase of shares must be affected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done without any prior
understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty.
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• 	After the Company has acquired shares which constitute, on a cumulative basis, 3% (three percent) of the initial number of shares
in issue (at the time that authority from shareholders for the repurchase is granted) of the relevant class of securities and for each
3% in aggregate of the initial number of that class acquired thereafter the Company shall publish an announcement containing full
details of such repurchase.
• At any one point in time the Company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase on the Company’s behalf.
• 	The repurchase of shares may not be undertaken by the Company or any of its wholly owned subsidiaries during a prohibited period
as defined by the Listings Requirements of the JSE, unless a repurchase programme is in place where the dates and quantities of
shares to be traded during the relevant period are fixed and full details of the programme have been disclosed in an announcement
on SENS prior to the commencement of the prohibited period.
• 	The number of shares which may be repurchased pursuant to this authority in any one financial year may not in aggregate, exceed
20% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the date of passing of this special resolution or 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital in the case of an acquisition of shares in the Company by a subsidiary of the Company.
• 	The repurchase of shares may not be made at a price greater than 10% above the weighted average of the market value of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the transaction is effected.
• 	The Company’s board of directors will pass a resolution confirming the adequacy of the Company’s working capital for purposes of
undertaking the repurchase of shares.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 2
	The reason for this special resolution is to extend the general authority given to the directors of the Company or any subsidiary of the
Company in terms of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements for the acquisition by the Company or its subsidiaries of the
Company’s shares which authority shall be used at the directors’ discretion during the course of the period authorised.
	The directors, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase permitted, are of the opinion that for a period of 12 (twelve
months) after the date of the notice of this Annual General Meeting:
• the Company and the Group will be able to pay their debts in the ordinary course of business;
• 	the consolidated assets of the Company and the Group, fairly valued in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) will be in excess of the liabilities of the Company and the Group. For this purpose the assets and liabilities should be recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited Group annual financial statements;
• the share capital and reserves of the Company and the Group will be adequate for the ordinary business purposes; and
• the working capital of the company and the Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes.
In accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements, the directors record that:
	Although there is no immediate intention to effect a repurchase of securities of the Company, the directors would utilise the general
authority to repurchase securities as and when suitable opportunities present themselves, which opportunities may require expeditious
and immediate action.
Special resolution number 3 – Financial assistance to a related or inter-related company/corporation
“Resolved that:
• 	the company be and is hereby authorised, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 45(3)(a)(ii) of the Companies Act,
for a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance (as defined in section 45(1)
of the Companies Act) (“financial assistance”) to the following categories of persons (“categories of persons”):
		 – related or inter-related company or corporation: and/or
		 – member of a related or inter-related corporation.
• 	subject to, in relation to each grant of financial assistance to the categories of persons of such financial assistance, the board of
directors of the company being satisfied that:
		 – 	pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, immediately after providing the financial assistance, the company would
satisfy the solvency and liquidity test (as defined in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);
		 – 	pursuant to section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the terms under which the financial assistance is proposed to be given are
fair and reasonable to the company; and
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–	any conditions or restrictions respecting the granting of the financial assistance set out in the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
have been complied with.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 3
	Section 45 of the Companies Act regulates the provision of financial assistance by the company to certain categories of persons. The term
financial assistance has been defined in the Companies Act in wide terms and includes lending money, guaranteeing a loan or obligation,
and securing any debt or obligation but excludes lending money in the ordinary course of business by a company whose primary business
is the lending of money. The Companies Act stipulates that the board of directors of the company may provide financial assistance as
contemplated in section 45 of the Companies Act to the categories of persons, provided that the shareholders of the company passed a
special resolution within the previous two years which approves such financial assistance generally for such categories of persons. This
will allow the board of the company, always subject to applicable law, in particular the solvency and liquidity requirements as set out in
the Companies Act, to provide financial assistance to the said categories of persons.
Special resolution number 4 – Financial assistance to any person as envisaged in section 44 of the Companies Act
“Resolved that:
• 	the company be and is hereby authorised, in terms of a general authority contemplated in section 44(3)(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, for
a period of two years from the date of this resolution, to provide direct or indirect financial assistance by way of a loan, guarantee,
the provision of security or otherwise as defined in section 44 of the Companies Act (“financial assistance”) to any person for the
purposes or in connection with:
		 – the subscription of any option or any securities issued or to be issued by the company or a related or inter-related company; or
		 – the purchase of any securities of the company or a related or inter-related company.
• subject to the board of directors of the company being satisfied that:
		 – 	pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(i) of the Companies Act, immediately after providing the financial assistance, the company would
satisfy the solvency and liquidity test (as defined in section 4(1) of the Companies Act);
		 – 	pursuant to section 44(3)(b)(ii) of the Companies Act, the terms under which the financial assistance is proposed to be given are
fair and reasonable to the company; and
		 – 	any conditions or restrictions respecting the granting of the financial assistance set out in the company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation have been complied with.”
Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%
Reason for special resolution number 4
	Section 44 of the Companies Act regulates the provision of financial assistance by the company to any person by way of a loan,
guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise for the purpose of or in connection with (i) the subscription of any option, or any
securities, issued or to be issued by the company or related or inter-related company, or (ii) for the purchase of any securities of the
company, or a related or inter-related company. This will allow the board of the company, always subject to applicable law, in particular
the solvency and liquidity requirements as set out in the Companies Act, to provide financial assistance to any person for the purposes
envisaged in section 44(2) of the Companies Act.
Disclosure requirements in terms of the Listings Requirements
	The following additional information, some of which may appear elsewhere in the Annual Integrated Report 2015 is provided in terms of
the JSE Listings Requirements for purposes of the ordinary resolutions and special resolutions:
Directors and management page 2
Major shareholders page 64
Directors interest in shares page 26
Stated capital of the company page 48
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Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names are given on page 2 of this Annual Integrated Report 2015, collectively and individually accept full

responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to the special resolution and certify that to the best of their knowledge and
belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading and that all reasonable enquiries
to ascertain such facts have been made and that the aforementioned special resolution contains all the information required by the
JSE Limited.
Material change
Other than the facts and developments reported on in this Annual Integrated Report 2015, there have been no material changes in the affairs,
financial or trading position of the Company or its subsidiaries since the Company’s financial year end and the signature of this report.
Litigation
As reported in the previous year’s annual report, as well as the annual reports before that, on 30 October 2009 summons was served on
Nutritional Holdings by Andrew Maxwell Tully, Harold Levin, Colin Craig Elsworth and Randal James Brereton, being the trustees of the Tully
Family Trust, which trust was the previous owner of the Impilo Group. In terms of the summons, the plaintiffs are claiming that shares issued
to them in the year 2007 at 60 cents per share, should have been issued at 48 cents per share. The plaintiffs issued a further summons on
Nutritional Holdings on 4 December 2009, claiming tha the 33 333 333 shares issued to the Tully Family Trust were issued in certificated form
and thus contrary to the Impilo acquisition agreement in that they were not issued in negotiable form. An appearance to defend both summon’s
has been filed at the time of receipt. No further action has been taken by the trustees of the Tully Family Trust since Nutritional Holdings
entered an appearance to defend both summons some five years ago.
Besides the above, Nutritional Holdings and its subsidiaries are not involved in any mateial legal or arbitration proceedings or legal actions,
nor are the directors aware of any proceedings that are pending or threatened, that may have, or have had in the 12 month period preceding
the last practicable date, a material effect on the Group’s financial position.
Proxies
A shareholder of the Company entitled to attend, speak, and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies
to attend, speak and on a poll vote in his stead. The proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. A form of proxy is attached for the
convenience of any certificated shareholder and own name registered dematerialised shareholder who cannot attend the Annual General
Meeting, but who wishes to be represented.
Additional forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the Company’s registered office. The completed forms of proxy must be
deposited at, posted or faxed to the registered office of the Company or the transfer secretaries at their respective addresses set out below,
to be received by no later than 10:00 on Wednesday, 1 July 2015. Any member who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be
entitled to attend and vote in person at the Annual General Meeting should the member subsequently decide to do so.
Shareholders who have dematerialised their ordinary shares through a CSDP or broker, other than own name registered dematerialised
shareholders, and who wish to attend the Annual General Meeting, must request their CSDP or broker to issue them with a letter of
representation. Alternatively, dematerialised shareholders other than own name registered dematerialised shareholders, who wish to be
represented, must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the custody agreement between them and their CSDP
or broker in the manner and by the time-frame stipulated.
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Voting
On a show of hands, every shareholder of the Company present in person or by proxy shall have 1 (one) vote only, irrespective of the number
of shares he holds or represents, provided that a proxy shall, irrespective of the number of shareholders he represents have only 1 (one) vote.
On a poll, every shareholder of the company who is present in person or represented by proxy, shall have one vote for every share held in the
Company by such shareholder.
By order of the board
JA Etchells CA(SA)
Company Secretary
Durban
22 May 2015
Registered office address
Suite 3, 49 Richefond Circle
Ridgeside Office Park
Umhlanga Ridge
KwaZulu-Natal
4319
Transfer secretaries
Link Market Services (Pty) Limited
13th Floor Rennie House
19 Ameshoff Street
Braamfontein
Johannesburg, 2001
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PO Box 5026
Frosterley Park
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
4019

PO Box 4844
Johannesburg
2000

»

NUTRITIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2004/002282/06)
ISIN Code: ZAE 000156485 Share code: NUT
(“Nutritional Holdings” or “the Company”)

» FORM OF PROXY
For use by certificated and own name registered shareholders of the Company (“shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of Nutritional Holdings
to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 3 July 2015 (“the Annual General Meeting”) at the Boardroom of Great Wall Motors SA (Pty) Ltd, 5 Sneezewood Lane,
Glen Anil, Durban.
I/We:

(please print names in full)

of:

(address)

being the holder/s of:

ordinary shares of no par value in Nutritional Holdings, appoint (see note 1)

1.		

or failing him,

2.

or failing him,

3.

the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting,

as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting which will be held for the purpose of considering, and if deemed fit,
passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof and to vote for and/or against the resolutions
and/or abstain from voting in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (see note 3):
Number of votes (one vote per share)
For
Ordinary resolution number 1

– Endorsement of annual financial statements

Ordinary resolution number 2

– Re-appointment of auditors

Ordinary resolution number 3

– Auditors, remuneration

Ordinary resolution number 4

– Re-appointment Mr GR Wambach as a non-executive director

Ordinary resolution number 5

– Confirmation of appointment of TV Mokgatlha as a executive director

Ordinary resolution number 6

– Confirmation of appointment of Dr C Kapnias as a non-executive director

Ordinary resolution number 7

– Confirmation of appointment of Dr C Kapnias as a member of the Audit and
Risk Committee

Ordinary resolution number 8

– Re-appointment of Mr GR Wambach as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee

Ordinary resolution number 9

– Re-appointment of Mr TR Hendry as a member of the Audit and Risk
Committee

Ordinary resolution number 10

– Placing unissued ordinary shares for purpose of share option scheme under
the control of the directors

Ordinary resolution number 11

– Placing of the authorised but unissued ordinary share capital under the
control of the directors

Ordinary resolution number 12

– General authority to issue shares for cash

Ordinary resolution number 13

– Authorisation to sign any documents

Special resolution number 1

– Remuneration of non-executive directors

Special resolution number 2

– Acquisition of Company’s own shares

Special resolution number 3

– Financial asssistance to a related or inter-related company/corporation

Special resolution number 4

– Financial assistance to any person envisaged in section 44 of the
Companies Act

Signed at:

on

Assisted by me where applicable:

Please read the notes on the reverse hereof.

Capacity:

Abstain

2015

Signature:

Name:		

Against

Signature:

» NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
Certificated shareholders
If you are a certificated shareholder or have dematerialised your shares with own name registration and you are unable to attend the
Annual General Meeting of Nutritional Holdings shareholders to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 3 July 2015 and wish to be represented thereat,
you must complete and return this form of proxy in accordance with the instructions contained herein and lodge it with, or post it to, the
transfer secretaries, namely Link Market Services.
Dematerialised shareholders other than those with own name registration
If you hold dematerialised shares in Nutritional Holdings through a CSDP or broker other than with an own name registration, you must
timeously advise your CSDP or broker of your intention to attend and vote at the general meeting or be represented by proxy thereat in order
for your CSDP or broker to provide you with the necessary letter of representation to do so, or should you not wish to attend the general
meeting in person, you must timeously provide your CSDP or broker with your voting instruction in order for the CSDP or broker to vote in
accordance with your instruction at the Annual General Meeting.
1. 	Each member is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be shareholders of the company) to attend, speak and, on a
poll, vote in place of that member at the Annual General Meeting.
2. 	A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in the space provided, with
or without deleting “the Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and
who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.
3. 	A member’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by that member
in the appropriate box/es provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the Chairperson of the Annual
General Meeting, if he is the authorised proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the Annual General Meeting, or any other proxy
to vote or to abstain from voting at the general meeting as he deems fit, in respect of all the member’s votes exercisable thereat.
4. 	A member or his proxy is not obliged to vote in respect of all the ordinary shares held or represented by him but the total number of
votes for or against the resolutions and in respect of which any abstention is recorded may not exceed the total number of votes to
which the member or his proxy is entitled.
5.

Forms of proxy must be lodged with, or posted to the transfer secretaries to be received no later than 48 hours before the AGM.

6. 	The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending the Annual General Meeting
and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms thereof, should such member wish to do
so.
7.

Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

8. 	Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached
to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the Company’s transfer office or waived by the Chairperson of the Annual General
Meeting.
9. 	The Chairperson of the Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or received other
than in accordance with these instructions, provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a member wishes to vote.
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» CORPORATE INFORMATION
Country of Incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Holding company registration number

2004/002282/06

Directors
		
		
		
		
		

RS Etchells
TR Hendry
C Kapnias
TV Mokgatlha
AR Pinfold
GR Wambach

Registered Office
Suite 3
		
49 Richefond Circle
		
Ridge side Office Estate
		
Umhlanga Rocks
		4319

Postal address
PO Box 5026
		
Frosterley Park
		
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
		4019
Auditors
Grant Thornton (Durban)
		
Practice number: 905690
		
2nd Floor
		
4 Pencarrow Crescent
		
Pencarrow Park
		
La Lucia Ridge Office Estate
		
La Lucia
		4019
Telephone
Facsimile
Website

012 655 0606
012 655 0288
www.nholdings.co.za
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»

Holding Company
Nutritional Holdings Limited
Reg. No.: 2004/02282/06

Postal

P.O.BOX 5026
Frosterley Park
La Lucia Ridge
4019

Physical

Eco Court 1FF
340 Witch Hazel Ave.
Eco Park
Centurion
0157
Tel : (+27) 12 655 0606
Fax: (+27) 12 655 0288
Email: info@nholdings.co.za

Investor Relations Contact

Cell : (+27) 82 331 8529
Tel : (+27) 12 655 0606
Fax: (+27) 12 655 0288
Email : thabo@nholdings.co.za
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